

California State Board of Pharmacy 2720 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100 Sacramento, CA 95833

Phone: (916) 518-3100 Fax: (916) 574-8618

www.pharmacy.ca.gov

Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency Department of Consumer Affairs Gavin Newsom, Governor



California State Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
Public Board Meeting Minutes

Date: October 27-28, 2020

Location: Teleconference Public Board Meeting

Note: Pursuant to the provisions of Governor Gavin Newsom's Executive Order N-25-20, dated March 17, 2020, neither a public location nor teleconference locations are provided.

Board Members

Present: Gregory Lippe, Public Member, President

Debbie Veale, Licensee Member, Vice President

Maria Serpa, Licensee Member, Treasurer Ryan Brooks, Public Member (Oct. 28 only)

Lavanza Butler, Licensee Member

Shirley Kim, Public Member Seung Oh, Licensee Member Jignesh Patel, Licensee Member Ricardo Sanchez, Public Member Jason Weisz, Public Member Albert Wong, Licensee Member

Staff Present: Anne Sodergren, Executive Officer

Lyle Matthews, Assistant Executive Officer

Norine Marks, DCA Staff Counsel Eileen Smiley, DCA Staff Counsel Dani Rodgers, DCA Staff Counsel

Debbie Damoth, Administration Manager

October 27, 2020

I. Call to Order, Establishment of Quorum, and General Announcements

President Lippe called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m.

President Lippe advised all individuals observing or participating in the meeting that the meeting was being conducted consistent with the provisions of Governor Gavin Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20. Mr. Lippe advised participants watching the

webcast could only observe the meeting. He noted anyone interested in participating in the meeting must join the WebEx meeting using the instructions posted on the Board's website.

Department of Consumer Affairs' staff provided general instructions for the WebEx Board Meeting for members of the public participating in the meeting.

President Lippe advised those participating in the teleconference the Board would convene in closed session after deliberating on the open session items, except adjournment.

Roll call was taken. Board Members present: Lavanza Butler, Jason Weisz, Jignesh Patel, Debbie Veale, Ricardo Sanchez, Albert Wong, Shirley Kim, Seung Oh, Maria Serpa, and Greg Lippe. A quorum was established.

II. Public Comments on Items Not on the Agenda/Agenda Items for Future Meetings

Lindsay Gullahorn, CRA and NACDS, requested the Board add to a future agenda consideration of a waiver and/or statutory change to allow pharmacy technicians to administer all vaccinations and not just flu vaccinations. She noted CRA and NACDS strongly support the agenda item from the Licensing Committee to perform flu vaccinations and would like other vaccinations. Ms. Gullahorn noted data across the country has shown a sharp decrease in non-flu routine vaccinations during the COVID-19 pandemic. Ms. Gullahorn added pharmacies are widespread access and allow for patients to avoid institutional settings.

Rita Shane, Cedars Sinai Medical Center, requested the Board agendized the issue of white bagging. Dr. Shane elaborated white bagging is the practice of payers instituting policies requiring drug therapies for cancer and other infusion patients be obtained from a specialty pharmacy which ships the drug to the hospital or infusion program without any information about how the product was obtained or product integrity. Dr. Shane added this conflicts with some California law – 4024 and 4059 – in that the products are not being dispensed to the hospital but are coming from a payor designated pharmacy, nor are they going directly to the patient which is also an issue on how the drugs were stored. Dr. Shane noted there are state and federal regulatory conflicts. She provided an example in a hospital pharmacy the drugs are supposed to be procured for the patients that are being treated on the premises including outpatient infusion programs. In addition to not being able to verify the integrity of the product, Dr. Shane continued if the patient needs emergent treatment due to cancer or transplant rejections, the treatment would have to wait for the arrival of the products before they could be compounded. Dr. Shane stated it was a significant health issue and a conflict with regulatory requirements.

Mark Johnston, CVS Health, commented as part of the authority to furnish limited quantities of PrEP and PEP medications per 4052.02 and 4052.03 pharmacists to order HIV tests and provide these medications consistent with CDC guidelines. CDC guidelines recommend the following baseline values which are also realized to be the standard of care: renal function tests, liver function tests, negative pregnancy tests, STI screening and documented Hepatis B and Hepatis C status. Mr. Johnston continued 4052.02 and 4052.03 do not consider the ordering of these tests. He stated 4052.11 provides ordering authority which states a pharmacist may order and interpret tasks for the purpose of monitoring and managing the efficacy and toxicity of drug therapies. Mr. Johnston inquired if the Board could confirm that the ordering of these baseline lab values fits within the statutory requirement of being ordered for monitoring and managing the efficacy and toxicity drug therapies even though they would occur prior to the furnishing of drug therapy. If so, CVS Health will initiate a roll out of its HIV prophylaxis furnishing program to the first of their 1,200 California locations. If not, CVS Health respectfully requests the Board fix the statutory conflict delaying their program.

Ryan Enderle, Pharmacy Director, Department of State Hospitals, Napa, thanked the Board for work granting waivers related to the emergency declaration. Dr. Enderle noted the remote processing waiver was only extended one month and would like to advocate for the waiver. He stated the waiver has allowed his facility to increase social distance while maintaining patient care, and staff has seen an increase in some required reporting and improved quality of service. Dr. Enderle stated it is appreciated by his facility's pharmacists and is considered a valuable resource during COVID and afterwards. He stated they see a role for remote validation for pharmacists after hours when the pharmacy is closed if on standby to access new orders written by prescribers. Dr. Enderle stated that continuation of this could increase the quality of patient care.

President Lippe advised Dr. Enderle he could request a site-specific waiver. Dr. Enderle indicated a site-specific waiver request was submitted in September. President Lippe stated he would follow up on the site-specific waiver.

President Lippe provided Board Members the opportunity to place the item on a future agenda.

Member Serpa thanked Dr. Shane for her comments on white bagging and reported to the Board this would be considered by the Enforcement and Compounding Committee at a separate topic specific meeting. Dr. Serpa recommended Board staff reach out to Dr. Shane.

Member Oh inquired if the remote processing was under consideration. President Lippe indicated it was a broad waiver that wasn't being used and was switched to a site-specific waiver.

Member Oh inquired about answering Mr. Johnston's questions about ordering labs under PrEP/PEP. Executive Officer Sodergren offered to reach out to Mr. Johnston to fully understand his question and if appropriate forward to the Licensing Chair for consideration as an agenda item.

Motion: To forward to a future agenda of the Licensing Committee allowing

pharmacy technicians to provide all vaccinations for discussion and

consideration.

M/S: Patel/Veale

Members were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Support: 9 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 1 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Not Present
Butler	Abstain
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

III. Approval of the September 17, 2020, Board Meeting Minutes

Members were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Motion: Approve the September 17, 2020, Board Meeting minutes including

typographical corrections.

M/S: Sanchez/Patel

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Not Present
Butler	Support
Kim	Abstain
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Abstain
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

Support: 8

IV. Discussion and Consideration of designating all or portions of the decision, IV Solutions, Inc. v. Cal. Bd. of Pharmacy (Cal. App. B281845; LA2017604880) as Precedential pursuant to Government Code Section 11425.60

President Lippe referenced the memo in the meeting materials from counsel, Eileen Smiley, and stated the Board can designate and rely on decisions as precedential.

President Lippe stated he agreed with the information from Ms. Smiley including the significance the Board's action could have on future cases. He noted the value in taking such action, including the benefit to licensees as well as the public. He noted the memo provided a recommendation for the Board's consideration with two exceptions, designating the remainder of the decision as precedential as detailed. He opened the item for discussion to the members.

Counsel Eileen Smiley provided a summary indicating the Board had an extensive decision by the Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) which was adopted by the Board after reconsideration. The petitioners filed a writ for mandamus alleging numerous errors. The trial court in Los Angeles denied the writ which was upheld by the court of appeals. Ms. Smiley stated the case involved interpretations of Business and Professions Code (BPC) 4301 (f) specifically, unprofessional conduct with respect to a pharmacy intentionally concealing information about the cost of its services at the outset of the patient relationship as required by its policies and procedures and delays in its billing that were designed to conceal the charges being submitted to a patient's insurance company.

Ms. Smiley noted after consultation with Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) counsel and liaisons with the Office of Attorney General that designating this case as

precedential is important because it gives good clarification about the application of BPC section 4301 (f) including a pharmacy may be disciplined for failing to abide by its policies and procedures as required by an accreditation standard as opposed to a rule or statute. Although the Board disclaimed authority to set the prices that pharmacies charge, they can consider and discipline a pharmacy for deceptive pricing and billing under BPC section 4301 (f).

Ms. Smiley clarified the one aspect that is not being asked to be designated as precedential. This aspect is Factual Finding 119 where the ALJ found based on conflicting expert witness testimony the Board didn't establish its burden of proof with respect to establishing an industry standard that required a pharmacy to disclose its prices and status as an out-of-network provider of services to patients prior to taking on those services. The ALJ found the Board's expert witness found no research or facts tending to show an industry standard. Ms. Smiley explained this part is not being asked to be precedential as over time a new standard could develop or there could be additional facts that could establish such a duty based on all the facts and circumstances. However, the decision is important to show pharmacies how they should be disclosing their pricing and billing practices and provide important information to consumers.

Motion: Designate all the decision, IV Solutions, Inc. v. Cal. Bd. of Pharmacy (Cal.

App. B281845; LA2017604880) as precedential pursuant to Government

Code Section 11425.60 except for Factual Finding 119 and Legal

Conclusion 5.D.

M/S: Veale/Butler

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, inquired if the precedential decision will allow the Board to issue disciplinary action against a pharmacist for not disclosing pricing and billing practices as it relates to insurance. Mr. Martinez stated he did not understand the responsibility of the pharmacist now because pharmacists don't always know when they are considered in or out of the network. Ms. Smiley stated the case indicates it will depend on the facts and circumstances. Mr. Martinez requested the Board delay making this case precedential.

Support: 9 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 1 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Not Present
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Abstain
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

V. Discussion and Consideration of Requests to Waive Pharmacy Law Provisions Consistent with the Authority of Business and Professions Code section 4062

- a. Consideration of Site-Specific Waiver
 - 1. Exela Pharma Sciences, BPC 4129.8 Temporary License

President Lippe referred to the meeting materials that on June 23, 2020, the Board issued temporary licenses to Exela Pharma Sciences, after approval of a limited waiver to BPC section 4129.2(c) which allowed for the issuance of a temporary license without an inspection. Consistent with the provisions of a temporary license, these outsourcing licenses will expire on December 15, 2020.

President Lippe noted as part of the approval of the temporary license, staff receive quarterly reporting of information, including batches produced and sent into California along with information on batches rejected. This first report indicated that Exela did not have any batches rejected during the reporting period.

President Lippe continued with restrictions on travel outside of California, Board staff have not had an opportunity to complete the necessary inspection. Staff recommended the Board consider an extension of the temporary license for an additional 180 days from the current date of expiration, unless public protection issues are identified. Meeting materials indicated the potential need for COVID-related products if there is a shortage for patients on ventilators.

President Lippe noted the meeting materials provided two options for Board consideration. The first option would be to vote to extend the waiver, while the second option would be for the Board to delegate to the Board president the

authority to extend the temporary license for a period of up to 180 days from the current expiration if deemed appropriate.

President Lippe asked the Board to discuss the waiver and options provided.

Vice President Veale inquired if the Board would continue to receive quarterly reports. President Lippe stated the Board would continue to receive quarterly reports.

Motion: Extend the temporary license 180 days from the current expiration

date.

M/S: Veale/Butler

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Support: 10 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Not Present
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

VI. Organizational Development Committee Report

a. Budget Update and Report

President Lippe referenced final budget figures for the last two fiscal years were provided in the meeting materials.

President Lippe continued the Board's budget authority for the current fiscal year is \$29.3M, which is about a 2% increase from last year. Licensing fees continue to be the largest source of revenue for the Board. Personnel is the Board's largest expenditure, about 64% of the expenditures this year.

President Lippe noted a review of the Board's fund condition indicates that end of FY 2019/20, the fund was down to 3.4 months in reserve. This is in large part due to a \$2.4M loan to the general fund. It appears that the Board's fund is expected to drop to 2.9 months by the end of this year with slight increases the following two years. He noted the Board will continue to monitor the fund very closely to ensure the financial solvency of the Board.

b. Board Member Attendance Report

President Lippe referenced meeting materials provide a summary of the Board's attendance for last year.

c. Personnel Update

President Lippe reported the Board currently has 11 vacant positions.

d. Meeting Calendar for Remainder of 2020

President Lippe advised the Board's next meeting is scheduled for December 3.

e. Proposed Meeting Calendar for 2021

President Lippe stated the proposed meeting dates for next calendar year were included in the meeting materials. Until conditions approve, the Board is unable to confirm if the meetings will be in person or via WebEx. The Board will continue to use the Board's website and subscriber alert system to keep people informed.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

VII. Communication and Public Education Committee

a. Update on Communication Plan Regarding SB 159 Related to Furnishing HIV Preexposure and Postexposure Prophylaxis

Chairperson Sanchez provided a background summary to the Board. He noted at the January 2020 committee meeting, members suggested partnering with schools and professional organizations to create informational materials for pharmacists about SB 159. The committee also suggested using the Board's website, subscriber alerts and newsletter to disseminate information about initiating and furnishing PrEP

and PEP to pharmacists. At the July 2020 committee meeting, staff reported meeting with Please PrEP Me, an advocacy group, to discuss collaborating on communications. Please PrEP Me went on hiatus after meeting with staff. However, the committee was advised staff would continue to work with other groups on developing messages about SB 159.

Chairperson Sanchez provided an update to the Board. Staff issued subscriber alerts informing licensees about the approval of CCR section 1747, an emergency regulation establishing training requirements to initiate and furnish HIV PrEP and PEP, as directed by SB 159. The information also is posted on the Board's website. In addition, an article about the emergency regulation was published in the September 2020 issue of the Script. The article also reports that the Board is developing a training program for pharmacists that meets the requirements of CCR section 1747. Staff also shared the information about the emergency regulation and the Board's upcoming training program with the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) to disseminate to public health stakeholders.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

b. Update on Notice to Consumers Poster

Chairperson Sanchez provided a summary of the background to the Board. He noted at the July 2020 committee meeting, staff reported efforts to survey consumer groups about possible changes to the Notice to Consumers poster were delayed amid the Board's response to the COVID-19 state of emergency.

Chairperson Sanchez provided an update summary to the Board. He noted staff reached out to the California Alliance of Retired Americans (CARA) for input on what kind of information would be useful for pharmacy consumers. Jodi Reid, director of CARA, advised staff that CARA was active in advocating for the original poster. She said she would discuss the matter with other CARA leaders and provide some recommendations to the Board. Staff will also seek out other consumer groups for ideas regarding possible changes to the Notice to Consumers poster.

c. Update on The Script

Chairperson Sanchez updated the Board noting the current issue of the Script was published in September. The next issue is planned for publication in December. The next newsletter will include articles on news laws and regulations and compounding topics. In addition, disciplinary cases summaries will be published in the newsletter.

d. Quarterly Communications Report

Chairperson Sanchez provided a summary of a statistical report on Board communication and training activities for the first quarter (July 1 through September 30) of fiscal year 2020/21.

- Subscriber alerts A total of 150 alerts were issued to licensees and news subscribers, including: drug recall notices – 48; COVID-19 waivers – 6; regulations – 4; declarations of emergencies – 3; and Board/committee meetings/activities – 13.
- Website Links to the following important information were posted on the Board's homepage: Emergency Related to Statewide Fires – 2; COVID-19 Information – 2; and Important Information for Consumers – 1.
- Social Media A total of 96 messages were posted on the Board's Twitter account. The most viewed messages included: July 494 viewed a message about wearing masks to prevent the spread of COVID-19; August 1,053 viewed a message about reducing energy during a heat wave; and September 784 viewed a message about the publication of the Script.
- Training First quarter of 2020/21 training participation reflects: Ethics 2,585;
 Naloxone 126; and Law 834.

e. New Media Inquiries

Chairperson Sanchez referred to the meeting materials for the news media inquiries.

f. Public Outreach

Chairperson Sanchez referred to the meeting materials for the public outreach update.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

VIII. Closed Session Matters

The Board recessed into closed session at approximately 4:59 p.m.

IX. Reconvene Open Session, to adjourn for the day

Due to technological limitations, adjournment will not be broadcast. Adjournment will immediately follow closed session, and there will be no other items of business discussed.

The Board adjourned after closed session at approximately 5:33 p.m.

October 28, 2020

President Lippe called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m.

President Lippe advised all individuals observing or participating in the meeting that immediately follow the meeting today, the Board will be convening an emergency board meeting. The agenda and information for this emergency meeting is posted on the Board's website.

Department of Consumer Affairs' staff provided general instructions for the WebEx Board Meeting for members of the public participating in the meeting.

Roll call was taken. Board Members present: Ryan Brooks, Lavanza Butler, Shirley Kim, Seung Oh, Jignesh Patel, Ricardo Sanchez, Maria Serpa, Debbie Veale, Jason Weisz, and Greg Lippe. A quorum was established. Note: Albert Wong joined the meeting at 9:15 a.m.

X. Discussion and Consideration of Comments on Board-Approved Regulations, Proposed Comment Responses, and Adoption of Regulations

 a. Proposed Regulations to Add Title 16 CCR Section 1717.5, Related to Automatic Refills

President Lippe advised the Board would consider the proposed regulations to add Title 16, CCR Section 1717.5, Related to Automatic Refills.

President Lippe provided during the September meeting, the Board voted to amend the regulation language and release the language for a 15-day public comment period. This comment period ended on October 10, 2020. Included in the meeting materials were comments received during the 15-day comment period, summaries of the comments received with recommendations, and the proposed text that was released for the 15-day comment period.

President Lippe confirmed member reviewed the meeting materials. Mr. Lippe requested members provide thoughts on the comments received and staff recommendations.

Vice President Veale inquired about the process for enrolling and when documentation is provided to the patient.

The Board heard public comment from Lori Walmsley, Walgreens, who recommended under (a) (2) the Board look at modification to the language so that it is before the patient is being dispensed to using the automated refill program versus before enrolled as it provides more flexibility while the patient is still getting the information needed.

After public comment, President Lippe requested comments from members.

Member Oh indicated he was satisfied with the staff recommendation and made a motion to accept the Board staff recommended comment responses and adopt the regulation language as noticed for 15-day comment on September 25, 2020; additionally, delegate to the executive officer the authority to make technical or nonsubstantive changes as may be required by the Control agencies to complete the rulemaking file.

Member Patel commented with regard to patient safety a lot of individuals are already enrolled in an automatic refill program at various pharmacies. Dr. Patel stated going through all the new steps for existing patients on automatic refill programs would cause unintended consequences due to the changes. He noted the regulation needs to be prospective and not retrospective. Dr. Patel noted staff did a great job. Dr. Patel wanted to make a motion that was prospective for new patients and not retrospective for current patients on an automatic refill program.

Member Oh withdrew his motion pending other comments. Dr. Oh noted he didn't want to cause confusion and was sympathetic to the comments submitted by independent pharmacies.

Executive Officer Sodergren suggested the Board may wish to contemplate to provide a transition period would be to establish an effective date. Typically, a regulation is effective the following quarter it is approved by the Office of Administrative Law. The Board has the flexibility to establish an effective date which would address a concern for time to transition for example, July 1.

Member Patel indicated this would address his concern and would allow for ample time to comply and patients not disenrolled.

Member Oh made a motion with an effective date of July 1, 2021. Vice President Veale added if it takes six to nine months to go through the process a later effective date would be needed. Member Patel suggested January 1, 2022.

Motion:

Accept the Board staff recommended comment responses and adopt the regulation language as noticed for 15-day comment on September 25, 2020, with an effective date of January 1, 2022, and to reject the comments. Additionally, delegate to the executive officer the authority to make technical or nonsubstantive changes as may be required by the Control agencies to complete the rulemaking file. Instruct Board staff to develop a FAQ explaining what each prescription means.

Proposal to add § 1717.5 in Article 2 of Division 17 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations to read as follows:

§ 1717.5. Automatic Refill Programs.

- (a) A pharmacy may offer a program to automatically refill prescription medications provided the pharmacy complies with this section.
 - (1) The pharmacy shall have written policies and procedures describing the program, which shall set forth, at a minimum, how the pharmacy will comply with this section, as well as a list of medications that may be refilled through the program.
 - (2) <u>Before a patient enrolls, the pharmacy shall provide a written or electronic notice summarizing the program to the patient or patient's agent. Such notice shall include, at a minimum, instructions about how to withdraw a prescription medication from refill through the program or to disenroll entirely from the program. The patient or patient's agent shall enroll by written, online, or electronic informed consent to participate in the program for each prescription.</u>
 - (3) The pharmacy shall keep a copy of the written <u>or electronic</u> <u>informed</u> consent to enroll on file for one year from date of dispensing.
 - (4) When a patient enrolls, the pharmacy shall provide a written notice summarizing the program to the patient or patient's agent. Such notice shall include, at a minimum, instructions about how to withdraw a prescription medication from refill through the program or to disensell entirely from the program.
 - (5-4) The pharmacy shall complete a drug regimen review for each prescription refilled through the program at the time of refill.
 - (€-5) Each time a prescription is refilled through the program, the pharmacy shall provide a written <u>or electronic</u> notification to the

- patient or patient's agent confirming that the prescription medication is being refilled through the program.
- (<u>+6</u>) The patient or patient's agent shall at any time be able to withdraw a prescription medication from automatic refill or to disenroll entirely from the program. <u>The pharmacy shall document and maintain such withdrawal or disenrollment for one year from the date of withdrawal or disenrollment and shall provide confirmation to the patient or patient's agent.</u>
- (8-7) The pharmacy shall provide a full refund to the patient, patient's agent, or payer for any prescription medication refilled through the program if the pharmacy is—was notified that the patient did not want the refill, regardless of the reason, and—or the pharmacy had been notified of withdrawal or disenrollment from the program prior to dispensing the prescription.
- (9-8) A pharmacy shall make available any written <u>or electronic</u> notification required by this section in alternate languages as required by state or federal law.
- (b) A licensed health facility, as defined in Health and Safety Code section 1250, that automatically refills prescription medications for its patients need not comply with the provisions of this section.
- (c) Pharmacies automatically refilling prescription medications for inmates of an adult correctional facility or a juvenile detention facility need not comply with the provisions of this section if the facility has written policies and procedures describing how a patient may request that a medication be automatically refilled and how a patient may refuse the medication.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4005, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4001.1, 4005, 4063 and 4076.6, Business and Professions Code and Section 1250, Health and Safety Code.

M/S: Oh/Brooks

Member Brooks requested inserting "before patient is dispensed to the patient for the first time using automatic refill program" as requested by public comment. President Lippe indicated the request was before enrollment. President Lippe clarified the comment was referring to "before" being enrolled and not before the prescription was provided.

Executive Officer Sodergren clarified when the Board previously discussed this, the issue was that informed consent from the patient was obtained before being enrolled in an automatic refill program. If the language is changed, a policy shift would be occurring as the patient would be enrolled in the program prior to consent. If this occurs, the patient would be enrolled prior to consent.

Member Serpa clarified this would cover all prescriptions that are enrolled in the program. Enrollment would not be required before each prescription; that would be onerous to the patient.

Member Wong stated he would like to see permission before prescription. Dr. Wong expressed concern for all patients to understand enrollment in the language the patient speaks. Member Oh clarified this was already covered in the proposed language.

Vice President Veale inquired if the proposed language requires enrollment for each prescription or medication. Ms. Veale also agreed with the public commenter that the enrollment is done prior to dispensing the medication which she believes to be informed consent. Member Brooks agreed.

Member Oh inquired if enrollment includes authorization for refills. He inquired if informed consent is required for each time a doctor writes a prescription. If that is the case, he is concerned with the text. Ms. Veale agreed.

Executive Officer Sodergren responded the staff response to comments addressed this issue. She explained the prescriptions are leveraging the requirements of patient consultation where it speaks to a change in dosage or direction. At the staff level, staff didn't think medication was appropriate and would be overly broad.

DCA Counsel Dani Rodgers confirmed the duty to consult statute is being used to determine how the prescription or medication is defined. Ms. Rodgers noted alternatively a definition could be defined to clarify when the duty to consult is triggered. Member Brooks believed this could potentially solve the issue.

Executive Officer Sodergren noted caution against additional definitions that could conflict with other definitions within statute. Dr. Oh suggested an FAQ to further explain intent. Ms. Veale recommended pointing to the response to the regulation comment that the duty to consult required per 16 CCR section 1707.2.

Ms. Rodgers requested time to develop language with the Executive Officer. Ms. Sodergren noted the rulemaking file expresses the Board's policy and an FAQ to clarify where there were concerns.

Members discussed when the authorized consent to enroll in the automatic refill should take place. Member Brooks, Veale and Patel agreed with the public commenter that it should be "before" the prescription is dispensed.

Members Oh, Lippe and Wong indicated the workflow of receiving a maintenance prescription would be enrollment after picking up a prescription and deciding to become enrolled in the program.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Support: 11 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 0

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

b. Proposed Regulations to Amend Title 16 CCR Sections 1711 and 1713 and to Add Title 16 CCR Section 1715.1, Related to Automated Drug Delivery Systems

President Lippe provided a background summary regarding the proposed regulations to amend Title 16, CCR Sections 1711 and 1713, and add title 16, CCR Section 1715.1, Related to Automated Drug Delivery Systems. He noted the Board voted to amend the regulation language and release the language for a 15-day public comment period as part of the September Board Meeting. This comment period ended on October 10, 2020. Mr. Lippe referenced the meeting materials. Mr. Lippe sought Board comments.

Motion:

Accept the Board staff recommended comment responses and adopt the regulation language as noticed for 15-day comment on September 25, 2020. Additionally, delegate to the executive officer the authority to make technical or nonsubstantive changes as may be required by the Control agencies to complete the rulemaking file.

Amend section 1711 of Article 2 of Division 17 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations to read as follows:

§ 1711. Quality Assurance Programs.

- (a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance program—which that documents and assesses medication errors to determine cause and an appropriate response as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and prevent errors.
- (b) For purposes of this section, "medication error" means any variation from a prescription or drug order not authorized by the prescriber, as described in Section 1716. Medication error, as defined in the section, does not include any variation that is corrected prior to furnishing the drug to the patient or patient's agent or any variation allowed by law.
- (c)(1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with written policies and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately retrievable form.
 - (2) When a pharmacist determines that a medication error has occurred, a pharmacist shall as soon as possible:
 - (A) Communicate to the patient or the patient's agent the fact that a medication error has occurred and the steps required to avoid injury or mitigate the error.
 - (B) Communicate to the prescriber the fact that a medication error has occurred.
 - (3) The communication requirement in paragraph (2) of this subdivision shall only apply to medication errors if the drug was administered to or by the patient, or if the medication error resulted in a clinically significant delay in therapy.
 - (4) If a pharmacist is notified of a prescription error by the patient, the patient's agent, or a prescriber, the pharmacist is not required to communicate with that individual as required in paragraph (2) of this subdivision.
- (d) Each pharmacy shall use the findings of its quality assurance program to develop pharmacy systems and workflow processes designed to prevent medication errors. An investigation of each medication error shall commence as soon as is reasonably possible, but no later than 2 business days from the date the medication error is discovered. All medication errors discovered shall be subject to a quality assurance review.
- (e) The primary purpose of the quality assurance review shall be to advance error prevention by analyzing, individually and collectively, investigative and other pertinent data collected in response to a medication error to assess the cause and any contributing factors such as system or process failures. A record of the quality assurance review

- shall be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy. The record shall contain at least the following:
- (1-) t-The date, location, and participants in the quality assurance review;
- (2-) t-The pertinent data and other information relating to the medication error(s) reviewed and documentation of any patient contact required by subdivision (c);
- (3-) t-The findings and determinations generated by the quality assurance review; and,
- (4-) r-Recommend changes to pharmacy policy, procedure, systems, or processes, if any.

The pharmacy shall inform pharmacy personnel of changes to pharmacy policy, procedure, systems, or processes made as a result of recommendations generated in the quality assurance program.

- (f) The record of the quality assurance review, as provided in subdivision (e) shall be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy for at least one year from the date the record was created. Further, a Any quality assurance record related to the use of an licensed automated drug delivery system must also be submitted to the board within 30 days of completion of the quality assurance review and any facility with an unlicensed automated drug delivery system must report the quality assurance review to the Board at the time of annual renewal.
- (g) The pharmacy's compliance with this section will be considered by the board as a mitigating factor in the investigation and evaluation of a medication error.
- (h) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent a pharmacy from contracting or otherwise arranging for the provision of personnel or other resources, by a third party or administrative offices, with such skill or expertise as the pharmacy believes to be necessary to satisfy the requirements of this section.

Note: Authority cited: Section 4005, Business and Professions Code; and Section 2 of Chapter 677, Statutes of 2000. Reference: Sections 4125, and 4427.7, Business and Professions Code.

Amend section 1713 of Article 2 of Division 17 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations to read as follows: § 1713. Receipt and Delivery of Prescriptions and Prescription Medications Must be To or From Licensed Pharmacy

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in this Division, no licensee shall participate in any arrangement or agreement, whereby prescriptions, or prescription medications, may be left at, picked up from, accepted by, or delivered to any place not licensed as a retail pharmacy.
- (b) A licensee may pick up prescriptions at the office or home of the prescriber or pick up or deliver prescriptions or prescription medications at the office of or a residence designated by the patient or

- at the hospital, institution, medical office or clinic at which the patient receives health care services. In addition, the Board may, in its sole discretion, waive application of subdivision (a) for good cause shown.
- (c) A patient or the patient's agent may deposit a prescription in a secure container that is at the same address as the licensed pharmacy premises. The pharmacy shall be responsible for the security and confidentiality of the prescriptions deposited in the container.
- (d) A pharmacy may use an automated <u>patient dispensing system (APDS)</u> delivery device to deliver previously dispensed prescription medications to patients provided:
 - (1) Each patient using the device has chosen to use the device and signed a written consent form demonstrating his or her informed consent to do so.
 - (2)(1) A pharmacist has determined that each patient using the device APDS meets inclusion criteria for use of the APDS device established by the pharmacy prior to delivery of prescription medication to that patient.
 - (3)(2) The <u>APDS device</u> has a means to identify each patient and only release that patient's prescription medications to the patient or <u>patient's agent</u>.
 - (4) The pharmacy does not use the device to deliver previously dispensed prescription medications to any patient if a pharmacist determines that such patient requires counseling as set forth in section 1707.2(a)(2).
 - (5)(3) The pharmacy provides an immediate consultation with a pharmacist, either in-person or via telephone, upon the request of a patient.
 - (6) The device is located adjacent to the secure pharmacy area.
 - (7) The device is secure from access and removal by unauthorized individuals.
 - (8) The pharmacy is responsible for the prescription medications stored in the device.
 - (9)(4) Any incident involving the <u>APDS</u> device where a complaint, delivery error, or omission has occurred shall be reviewed as part of the pharmacy's quality assurance program mandated by Business and Professions Code section 4125.
 - (10) The pharmacy maintains written policies and procedures pertaining to the device as described in subdivision (e).
- (e) Any pharmacy making use of an <u>APDS</u> automated delivery device as permitted by subdivision (d) shall maintain, and on an annual basis review, written policies and procedures providing for:
 - (1) Maintaining the security of the <u>APDS automated delivery device</u> and the dangerous drugs within the <u>APDS device</u>.
 - (2) Determining and applying inclusion criteria regarding which medications are appropriate for placement in the <u>APDS</u> device and for which patients, including when consultation is needed.

- (3) Ensuring that patients are aware that consultation with a pharmacist is available for any prescription medication, including for those delivered via the APDS automated delivery device.
- (4) Describing the assignment of responsibilities to, and training of, pharmacy personnel regarding the maintenance and filing procedures for the APDS automated delivery device.
- (5) Orienting participating patients on use of the <u>APDS automated</u> delivery device, notifying patients when expected prescription medications are not available in the <u>APDS device</u>, and ensuring that patient use of the <u>APDS device</u> does not interfere with delivery of prescription medications.
- (6) Ensuring the delivery of medications to patients in the event the APDS device is disabled or malfunctions.
- (f) Written policies and procedures shall be maintained at least three years beyond the last use of an <u>APDS</u> <u>automated delivery device</u>.
- (g) For the purposes of this section only, "previously-dispensed prescription medications" are those prescription medications that do not trigger a non-discretionary duty to consult under section 1707.2(b)(1), because they have been previously dispensed to the patient by the pharmacy in the same dosage form, strength, and with the same written directions.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4005, 4075, and 4114, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4005, 4017.3, 4052, 4116, and 4117, 4427, 4427.1, 4427.2, 4427.3, 4427.4, 4427.5, 4427.6, 4427.7, and 4427.8, Business and Professions Code

Add section 1715.1 of Article 2 of Division 17 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations to read as follows:

§ 1715.1. Self-Assessment of an Automated Drug Delivery System by the Pharmacist-in-Charge.

- (a) The pharmacist-in-charge of each automated drug delivery system as defined under section 4119.11, 4187.5 or section 4427.3 of the Business and Professions Code shall complete a self-assessment of the pharmacy's compliance with federal and state pharmacy law. The assessment shall be performed annually before July 1 of every year. The primary purpose of the self-assessment is to promote compliance through self-examination and education.
- (b) In addition to the self-assessment required in subdivision (a) of this section, the pharmacist-in-charge shall complete a self-assessment within 30 days whenever:
 - (1) A new automated drug delivery system license has been issued.
 - (2) There is a change in the pharmacist-in-charge, and he or she becomes the new pharmacist-in-charge of an automated drug delivery system.
 - (3) There is a change in the licensed location of an automated drug delivery system to a new address.

- (c) A pharmacist-in-charge of an automated drug delivery system shall assess the system's compliance with current laws and regulations by using the components of Form 17M-112 (Rev 12/18) entitled "Automated Drug Delivery System Self-Assessment". Form 17M-112 shall be used for all automated drug delivery systems and is hereby incorporated by reference.
 - (1) The pharmacist-in-charge shall provide identifying information about the underlying operating pharmacy including:
 - (A) Name and any license number(s) of the underlying pharmacy and their expiration date(s);
 - (B) Address, phone number, and website address, if applicable, of the underlying pharmacy;
 - (C) <u>DEA registration number, expiration date, and date of most recent DEA inventory;</u>
 - (D) Hours of operation of the pharmacy; and
 - (E) ADDS license number, address, and hours of operation.
 - (2) The pharmacist-in-charge shall respond "yes", "no", or "not applicable" (N/A) about whether the automated drug delivery system is, at the time of the self-assessment, in compliance with laws and regulations that apply to that pharmacy setting.
 - (3) For each "no" response, the pharmacist-in-charge shall provide a written corrective action or action plan to come into compliance with the law.
 - (4) The pharmacist-in-charge shall initial each page of the self-assessment with original handwritten initials in ink or digitally signed in compliance with Civil Code Section 1633.2(h) on the self-assessment form.
 - (5) The pharmacist-in-charge shall certify on the last page of the self-assessment that he or she has completed the self-assessment of the automated drug delivery system of which he or she is the pharmacist-in-charge. The pharmacist-in-charge shall also certify a timeframe within which any deficiency identified within the self-assessment will be corrected and acknowledge that all responses are subject to verification by the Board of Pharmacy. The certification shall be made under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California that the information provided in the self-assessment form is true and correct with an original handwritten signature in ink or digitally signed in compliance with Civil Code Section 1633.2(h) on the self-assessment form.
 - (6) The automated drug delivery system owner shall certify on the final page of the self-assessment that he or she has read and reviewed the completed self-assessment and acknowledges that failure to correct any deficiency identified in the self-assessment could result in the revocation of the automated dispensing system's license issued by the board. This certification shall be made under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California with an original handwritten signature in ink or digitally signed in compliance Civil Code Section 1633.2(h) on the self-assessment form.

- (d) <u>Each self-assessment shall be completed in its entirety and kept on file in the underlying pharmacy for three years after it is performed. The completed, initialed, and signed original must be readily available for review during any inspection by the board.</u>
- (e) <u>Any identified areas of noncompliance shall be corrected as specified</u> in the assessment.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 4119.11 and 4427.7, Business and Professions Code. Reference: Sections 4001.1, 4008, 4017.3, 4021, 4022, 4036, 4037, 4038, 4040, 4050, 4051, 4052, 4059, 4070, 4076, 4081, 4101, 4105, 4107, 4113, 4119.11, 4125, 4126, 4180, 4186, 4305, 4330, 4332, 4333, 4400, 4427, 4427.1, 4427.2, 4427.3, 4427.4, and 4427.5, Business and Professions Code and 16.5, Government Code.

A copy of the Proposed Modified Self-Assessment for ADDS (17M-112, REV. 12/18) is attached to these minutes.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

John Gray, Kaiser Permanente, conveyed concern during the 45-day comment period with the requirements from section 1711 (f) believing the requirement to submit quality assurance program to be too burdensome and little benefit to consumers of California. This comment was rejected by the Board based on a statutory requirement. Dr. Gray continued in his comment during the 15-day comment period, he laid out ways he believed the proposed modified text is inconsistent with the stated intention of the author of AB 1447. Additionally, a more targeted approach for the collection of quality assurance programs would be more in line with the author's intent. Dr. Gray stated he didn't believe the Board's response to his comment addressed his concern.

Support: 11 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 0

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

XI. Licensing Committee Report

a. Approval of July 8, 2020, Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes

Chairperson Veale informed the Board that the minutes from the July 8, 2020, committee meeting minutes were approved and are included in the meeting materials.

b. Discussion and Consideration of Proposal to Expand the Authority for Pharmacist to Administer CLIA Waived tests for Influenza and COVID-19

Chairperson Veale reported the committee had a very in-depth discussion on the current authority for pharmacists to perform CLIA waived tests under existing law and under the provisions of the DCA Directors' waiver and considered if it is in the best interest of consumers to expand testing authority. The minutes from the meeting were provided as supplemental information and provided significant detail regarding the committee's discussion.

Ms. Veale reviewed key points of the discussion at the committee meeting with stakeholders. With the CDC noting that both the flu and COVID-19 are respiratory illnesses caused by different viruses, coupled with the fact that it may be hard to tell the difference based on symptoms alone, testing may be needed to help confirm a diagnosis. Upon entering flu season with COVID-19 positive tests appearing to be on the rise nationally, it is appropriate to consider the benefits to patients if pharmacist authority is expanded to allow pharmacists to perform CLIA waived point of care tests for both COVID-19 and influenza.

Chairperson Veale elaborated the committee first considered if it believed there is a benefit to patients for pharmacists' authority to be expanded to allow pharmacists to perform CLIA waived tests for influenza and COVID. There was

agreement among all the committee members and stakeholders supporting expansion.

Chairperson Veale reviewed the questions the committee considered:

- 1. What, if any, additional training requirements should be required?
- 2. Should the proposal specify how test results should be communicated to the patient's PCP?
- 3. Should the proposal specify either space requirements or specify that a pharmacy must use physical barriers or other safeguards.
- 4. Is it necessary to detail out PPE requirements?
- 5. Should the Board be notified in advance of a pharmacy providing such services?
- 6. Should the Board specify records requirements?
- 7. Should the proposal include provisions that require a pharmacist to provide patient education as part of the process?

Chairperson Veale reported significant discussion and public comment on each of the policy questions posed. This discussion resulted in the committee's recommendation of a policy statement and draft statutory language for Board discussion. Ms. Veale noted the committee determined the best approach for policy questions was to allow flexibility to pharmacies. This was in large part in recognition that testing in some pharmacies may be done in a drive through, while others may be done in a dedicated space. Ms. Veale explained many requirements are established through required policies and procedures developed by the pharmacies. The approach was designed to balance consumer and employee protections while also providing flexibility.

Chairperson Veale highlighted elements of the draft proposal. As drafted, under the proposal a pharmacist's scope of practice would be expanded to allow for a pharmacist to perform any aspect of any FDA approved or authorized pointof-care test for COVID or flu that is classified as CLIA waived, if:

- 1. The testing is done in an appropriately licensed pharmacy that is also licensed as a laboratory; and
- 2. The pharmacist has completed the necessary training as required in the pharmacy's policies and procedures.

Chairperson Veale continued the proposal also sets forth the provisions that a pharmacy must meet, including:

- 1. The pharmacy is appropriately licensed as a laboratory.
- 2. The pharmacy maintains policies and procedures that at a minimum provide several elements including initial training requirements and ongoing training, safety precautions to protect pharmacy staff and consumers, ensure specific space for privacy and to reduce the risk of contamination, requirements for providing test results, documentation for

testing equipment, and provisions to ensure appropriate storage and handling of specimens, reagents, etc.

- 3. The proposal requires the PIC to perform an annual review of the policies and procedures.
- 4. Documentation requirements.

Chairperson Veale provided the draft proposal also makes changes to provisions under the purview of CDPH regulation that would also be necessary to meet the policy goal being recommended.

Chairperson Veale inquired if any committee members wanted to highlight anything specifically.

Member Oh appreciates the proposed draft provides some protection for the pharmacist but need to add languages to ensure the complete protection of the pharmacist including personal protective equipment (PPE) and that the pharmacist has adequate support to provide these services as it can't be done alone by the pharmacist. If the Board moves forward, need to provide treatment after testing.

Chairperson Veale indicated treatment was not included in this proposal. Executive Officer Sodergren provided treatment was not included on the agenda and cannot be discussed at this time but can be added as a future agenda item.

Chairperson Veale added the issue of PPE was addressed as being a required policy.

Member Wong inquired if there would be a consequence against any pharmacist that refused to do the testing. He also recommended pharmacists are protected and those who provide the test also test themselves frequently.

Member Butler inquired for a strong anti-retaliation protection for pharmacists who refuse to provide testing. Ms. Butler stated policies and procedures were not enough and standards were required. The pharmacists should have the appropriate PPE for the pharmacists and consumers in the pharmacies should be protected

Member Serpa noted this is one of many programs that seems to be a larger issue.

Member Patel stated many populations getting COVID, and pharmacists need to play a role as the most accessible health care worker and to be able to differentiate if a patient has flu or COVID and refer to physician. PPE, goggles, face shield, N95, and training to wear masks/face shield would all be required.

Dr. Patel stated the draft proposal as presented will empower pharmacists practicing in retail pharmacy and take the services provided to Californians to the next level.

Member Oh expressed before broad changes are made, the Board needs to assess if this is enough. Dr. Oh stated he wanted the policy to go back to committee to discuss further and review the text of the proposal. With a waiver in place, rushing this may result in more harm.

Member Patel stated consumers can use the services. Chairperson Veale added the waiver in place is for COVID only and not influenza. Ms. Veale suggested moving forward with the policy statement to get the waiver for COVID and influenza while sending the statutory language back to the committee. With a policy statement in place, it may assist in getting a waiver for COVID and influenza. Dr. Oh agreed with this approach.

Member Ryan Brooks left the meeting at approximately 10:15 a.m.

Member Butler stated standards are required to protect pharmacists. Ms. Veale stated the goal is to protect the pharmacists and consumers in California.

Committee Recommendation (Motion): To move forward to expand the authority of the pharmacist providing COVID-19 and influenza point-of care testing. To direct staff to work with the Chairperson Veale to put together a proposal to require the pharmacy to have a written policies and procedures that would address privacy and safety precautions, incorporate professional judgment of the pharmacist, safety of the staff, proper safety protection equipment, sanitation requirements as well as taking the CLIA Waiver, CDPH, and CDC policies into consideration. The committee's initial intent is to immediately pursue a policy statement in support to seek a waiver through the proper channels and draft proposed statutory language for a permanent solution to bring forward to the Board next week.

Member Wong expressed concern for the safety of the pharmacist. Dr. Wong stated the pharmacy should select pharmacists who would like to do the testing. Member Butler agreed with Dr. Wong as she hears pharmacists are overwhelmed with SB 493 related duties.

Member Weisz emphasized agreement in protecting the pharmacists and customers at pharmacies but there is an urgency to this matter. Pursing more detailed discussion is important but keeping in mind urgency is important.

Member Serpa spoke in support of committee's original motion and agreed with Member Weisz. Dr. Serpa indicated the statutory proposal is to allow the

authority; it doesn't require it but allows for it if the pharmacy and pharmacist decide to do it. Dr. Serpa expressed concern for delaying the statutory change.

Member Butler and Wong voiced concerns about pharmacists having the option to decide to offer testing.

Member Ryan Brooks returned to the meeting at 10:33 a.m.

Members inquired about the process for statutory change. Counsel Smiley clarified the language could be sent to the committee to be clarified and returned to the Board for approval. Once approved at the Board level, the Board must find a sponsor and the legislative process starts.

Executive Officer Sodergren inquired if based on the committee's recommendation/motion, does it provide flexibility to have the policy move forward with the language going back to the committee. Counsel Smiley opined the language could go back to the Committee if the meeting is before the next Board meeting or amend the motion to bring the language to the Board after adopted by the committee.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, requested to pass the committee's motion as written. The proposal addresses all prior issues leading up to the executive order issued in August 2020. Specifically, the laboratory and pharmacist being added to laboratory definition issues have been addressed. CPhA did not request required PPE due to possible shortages and believes pharmacists know what is appropriate.

Lindsay Gullahorn, CRA/NACDS, supported permanently expanding the authority to allow pharmacists to perform CLIA-waived COVID-19 and flu tests and agreed the language protects patients. Ms. Gullahorn agreed the issue is urgent and waiver should be pursued now. She requested clarification on policies and procedures to protect patients' physical space and privacy. She requested clarification that the proposal allows for drive through testing meets those requirements. She requested clarification to ensure the proposal extends to CLIA-waived point-of-care testing performed at mobile testing sites provided the pharmacy meets the existing mobile testing site requirements.

Jassy Grewal, UFCW, representing pharmacists in the retail setting where pharmacies are located at the back of the store. Patients potentially COVID-positive have to walk through the store to the pharmacy for a test. Ms. Grewal clarified there is not a disagreement that more flu and COVID-19 tests are needed or the state of emergency of the pandemic, but pharmacist members

want to ensure that testing is done safely to protect patients, pharmacy staff and retail staff from potential exposure. Ms. Grewal continued if testing is added to pharmacists' current duties, the Board must first impose and have in place standards to ensure the pharmacist is able to maintain safe patient care. She urged the statutory language to be returned to committee to ensure protections are in place for pharmacists. Standards will need to address all scenarios and PPE baseline must be above and beyond what is currently required at pharmacies. Pharmacist health and safety is first and foremost. As with other testing sites, there should be a specific and separate route to the testing.

Lori Walmsley, Walgreens, spoke in support of proposal to see waiver. Ms. Walmsley noted Walgreens had administered 1.6 million tests in 49 states and Puerto Rico and is interested in continuing this valuable service for the community. She added in addition to Ms. Gullahorn's questions related to the location that testing can be performed, would like to clarify the role that other appropriately trained personnel may play in the testing process. She noted most of the testing is done by self-swab by the patient so ensuring that other appropriately trained personnel can continue to assist in that test is extremely important and something that will help the pharmacist. She continued this proposal seemed to only address CLIA-waived tests and not some of the other types of COVID testing performed. In addition to the CLIA-waived point-of-care test, there is a test that is most prevalent where the patient performs a self-swab and the pharmacy acts as a collection site with little interaction with the pharmacy staff. She requested clarification that the proposal would not limit these types of activities as well.

Board Member Jason Weisz left the meeting at 10:48 a.m.

Steven Gray, CSHP, supported proceeding with the waiver for flu and COVID because this is a health care emergency. Dr. Gray mentioned one area of concern that a pharmacy may employ a pharmacist to do these waived tests. He noted by stating that in statute there is an implication that pharmacists in other environments can't perform the waived tests. Pharmacists are employed by healthcare clinics, hospitals, medical offices and other environments where they should be able to use their training, experience and professionalism to assist. He requested the committee and Board consider the implication and ensure the language doesn't inhibit pharmacists assisting in other environments.

Ademola Arè, National Community Pharmacist Association, echoed the comments from the public that this is an emergency. With COVID cases increasing, it is paramount that California pharmacists are able to offer this service as pharmacists are well trained to provide this service. Mr. Arè stated pharmacist interns and pharmacy technicians could be trained as well. He added HHS guidance also allowed for RSV tests because the three have

common symptoms. He recommended adding RSV tests. He added CDC guidelines can serve as a good reference for collecting and handling clinical specimens. He added it should be up to the pharmacy and recommended but not mandated.

Paige Tally, CCAP, agreed with the motion. Ms. Tally also agreed with the concerns of Members Wong and Butler regarding concerns for protecting pharmacists. She added there should be protections added to the statute.

Mark Johnston, CVS Health, spoke in support of the initiative. He noted CVS operates Omni Care long-term care facilities and patients are often not mobile. The long-term care facilities request a pharmacist is sent. His concern is that the activities are limited to a pharmacist in a pharmacy. He added it would be helpful to take a technician or non-licensed personnel to help with paperwork and record keeping. He requested guidance from the Board on where technicians and non-licensed personnel could be involved.

Chairperson Veale clarified that the waiver proposal would move forward and the draft statutory language would go back to the committee and then to the Board.

Ms. Smiley and Ms. Marks agreed to move the policy statement and have the language will go back to Board after the committee.

Support: 10 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Not Present
Wong	Support

The Board took a break from 11:02 a.m. to 11:13 a.m.

After returning from break, a roll call was taken. Members present included: Ryan Brooks, Lavanza Butler, Shirley Kim, Seung Oh, Jignesh Patel, Ricardo Sanchez, Maria Serpa, Debbie Veale, and Greg Lippe. A quorum was established.

c. Discussion and Consideration of Action Taken by the Accreditation Council of Pharmacy Education Related to California Health Sciences University's Loss of Accreditation Status

Chairperson Veale reported action taken by the ACPE to withdraw the preaccreditation status of California Health Sciences University (CHSU). ACPE determined that CHSU's program was not sufficiently complaint with three of the 25 ACPE standards and as such, consistent with ACPE policy, more time could not be granted for accreditation. According to information obtained by ACPE, CHSU is not allowed to admit any new students; however, existing students can continue their education through the school's "teachout" program.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

d. Discussion and Consideration of Development of Mandatory Reporting Requirement for Schools of Pharmacy to Notify the Board of Licensees Engaged in Academic Dishonesty as part of the Student's Academics

Chairperson Veale noted the committee had a follow up discussion on the published research and presentation the Board considered as part of its July 2020 meeting. As indicated in the meeting materials, students enrolled in pharmacy school are required to complete introductory and advanced pharmacy practice experience. Such practice experience cannot be earned without an intern license.

Chairperson Veale added the committee considered if it is appropriate to establish a policy to require mandatory reporting of academic dishonesty which would allow the Board to determine if the activity is substantially related to the license, and if so, what if any action is appropriate.

During the meeting there appeared to be general consensus among members that some action is necessary to ensure integrity is maintained. Comments from the public also appeared to be in general support of some action. The dean from Western University indicated that academic dishonesty is a problem and suggested that schools could provide as part of its reporting to the Board, when a student is no longer enrolled if it is a result of academic dishonesty.

The committee discussed different options but decided the first steps could be defining academic dishonesty and identifying different ways to report to the Board. The committee intends to continue to work with staff to find solutions, which will be brought to the Board for consideration.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Steven Gray, CSHP, commented that CSHP agrees in moving forward with this issue and that academic dishonesty is a predictor of later in professionalism with integrity, law violations, etc. Dr. Gray noted a UCSD policy on academic integrity. Dr. Gray clarified Dean Robinson's prior comment that Western University does take action less than expulsion called failure to proceed which may include holding back or having to take a test over again with various levels. Dr. Gray added plagiarism is a form a fraud. He noted fraud is a concern for the profession of pharmacy and all health care professions. Dr. Gray added UCSD put all concluded actions taken on the student's transcript.

e. Discussion and Consideration of Authorized Duties of a Pharmacy Technician and Possible Expansion to allow for Administration of Influenza Vaccinations by Pharmacy Technicians

Chairperson Veale reminded as agendized, the discussion is specific to consideration of possible expansion of pharmacy technician duties to allow for the administration of influenza vaccines by pharmacy technicians. She noted during the committee meeting, the committee received several comments about expanding the agenda item to additional vaccines, which can't be done under the Open Meetings Act.

As indicated in the meeting materials, pharmacists have the authority to independently initiate and administer vaccines, including the flu vaccine. As part of its Pandemic Guidance, CDC notes that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused healthcare providers to change how they operate to continue to provide essential services to patients. Ensuring immunization services are maintained or reinitiated is essential for protecting individuals and communities and reducing the burden of respiratory illness during the upcoming influenza season.

Chairperson Veale reported some states have either pursued authority or are currently pursuing emergency rules to allow pharmacy technicians to engage in vaccine administration. For example, Rhode Island appears to allow a

pharmacy technician to be involved in the administration of adult immunizations in accordance with training requirements promulgated by the department of health. The regulation then provides that a technician II who has completed a recognized certificate training course on appropriate immunization administration technique and holds a current basic CPR is permitted to administer vaccines under the direct supervision and with the authorization of an immunizing pharmacist. A pharmacy technician II in Rhode Island requires an individual to pass a national certification examination.

Chairperson Veale reported Nevada in response to COVID-19 amended authority to authorize a pharmacy technician with appropriate training to administer immunizations under the direct supervision of a pharmacist. In its notice, the Nevada Board adopted emergency regulations to allow pharmacies to meet the increased demand for vaccines services. Under the Nevada emergency rules, a technician can administer immunizations by an intranasal, intramuscular or subcutaneous injection under the direct and immediate supervision of a pharmacist who has subscribed a written protocol established by a physician if the pharmacist has determined, that the patient should be immunized. Under the emergency rule the technician must complete at least one hour of training related to vaccines, immunization and the administration of immunizations. Further, such pharmacy technicians must complete at least one hour of CE on an annual basis.

Chairperson Veale noted the committee discussed the possible expansion of authorized duties to allow for pharmacy technicians to administer flu vaccines. Ms. Veale stated the committee again started the discussion with the larger policy question: Is there a benefit to patients to expand authority to administer flu vaccines?

Chairperson Veale noted that although there was not total agreement, in general the committee consensus seemed to be that such expansion is a benefit to consumers if the service is provided under the direct supervision of a pharmacist and there was a clear understanding of the process.

In addition to committee members expressing support, members of the public also spoke in support of such expansion. The committee then discussed several policy questions, including:

- 1. What additional training should be required as a precursor to expanding the authority as a permissible task?
- 2. Should continuing education be required, and if so, what is the appropriate hours and frequency?
- 3. Should the proposal require certification in basic life support?
- 4. What, if any, additional documentation should be required?
- 5. Are all routes of vaccine administration appropriate?
- 6. Is it appropriate to allow a pharmacy technician to administer

- epinephrine?
- 7. Should the proposal be limited to only patients of a certain age?
- 8. Should the proposal include explicit language providing that the supervising pharmacist has delegated the administration function and that the supervising pharmacist reserves the right to not make such a delegation?

Chairperson Veale indicated the minutes reflect a significant discussion and public comment on each of the policy questions posed. As included in the supplemental meeting materials, the committee recommends two items for the Board's discussion including a policy statement that speaks to the Board's support of efforts to expand authority for pharmacy technicians to administer flu vaccines under specified conditions as well as draft statutory language.

Chairperson Veale highlighted elements of the draft proposal. Under the proposal a pharmacy technician would be authorized to administer a flu vaccine, if deemed appropriate and delegated by the supervising pharmacy, only if certain conditions are met, including:

- 1. The technician holds a current CPR certificate.
- 2. The technician has completed specified training. As proposed the proposal specifically calls out the APhA Immunization training for pharmacy technicians, or similar training.
- 3. One hour of CE every two years.
- 4. Allow for administration of epinephrine if deemed appropriate by the supervising pharmacist.
- 5. Require documentation of the pharmacy technician administering the vaccine and that of the supervising pharmacist.

Committee Recommendation (Motion): To recommend to the Board to move forward immediately with a policy statement to pursue a waiver through DCA due to COVID-19 to allow for pharmacy technicians to administer influenza vaccinations. In addition, to pursue a permanent statutory change by proposing language to allow pharmacy technicians to administer influenza vaccinations. The committee would like to have a future discussion to expand pharmacy technicians administering vaccinations that include the COVID-19 vaccine.

President Lippe inquired if records are maintained and for what duration. Chairperson Veale provided consistent with records retention and typically three years.

Member Oh spoke in favor of advancing the profession but need to consider consequences. Dr. Oh noted the committee heard from corporate colleagues. He noted that there are more than enough pharmacists available to provide the immunizations and that pharmacy technicians represent cheaper labor. Dr. Oh didn't believe pharmacy technicians have adequate education and

training. He spoke in support of doing a better evaluation and a workforce analysis. He expressed concern that this will not help pharmacists but will cause more stress to supervise the pharmacy technicians. Dr. Oh understood other states do it but that California is the largest state and doesn't need to rush to the conclusion that it is needed. He hoped it would be sent back to committee.

Member Serpa expressed concern for sending it back due to urgency but understood the comments from Dr. Oh. Dr. Serpa added public access is important and noted currently these are given by medical assistants in physician offices. Dr. Serpa understood this would allow a pharmacy technician to administer the vaccine only after the pharmacist has done the appropriate review, written the prescription, and the pharmacy technician is only doing the actual administration. She noted this could be clarified as it currently states "if deemed appropriate and delegated by a supervising pharmacist." Dr. Serpa noted concern about the training requirement where a specific organization is listed and may want to consider "and others deemed appropriate by the Board." Additionally, Dr. Serpa requested clarification if the pharmacist or pharmacy technician can administer epinephrine as well as clarify the route.

Chairperson Veale commented the intent to say the administration of the vaccine is the only task tied to the pharmacy technician. She noted the comment on the administration of epinephrine was a good comment. Ms. Veale expected the language for training to be similar to other language used by the Board to include other trainings.

Member Patel noted if there was an emergency the pharmacy technician could administered an EpiPen without direct pharmacist supervision. Chairperson Veale stated this needs to be clarified.

Member Oh requested clarification for the definition of direct supervision. Member Butler expressed concern about additional duties being added to the pharmacist and comparing training for personnel in doctor's offices versus in a pharmacy. Chairperson Veale clarified the ask would be delegated to the pharmacy technician if the supervising pharmacist delegated it to the pharmacy technician. Ms. Veale clarified the training referenced by APhA is specific for pharmacy technicians.

Executive Officer Sodergren provided the BPC section 4023.5 as, "Direct Supervision and Control - For the purposes of this chapter, 'direct supervision and control' means that a pharmacist is on the premises at all times and is fully aware of all activities performed by either a pharmacy technician or intern pharmacist."

Member Wong spoke of designated areas for the vaccinations. Ms. Veale stated the same rules apply to the pharmacy technician as it would the pharmacist and is covered through the pharmacist.

Member Butler expressed concern about the liability for the pharmacist. Member Kim inquired if there are issues with administration, who would be liable: the pharmacy technician, supervising pharmacist or pharmacist-in-charge?

Counsel Marks opined responsibility would be determined based on the situation and she was unable to identify who would be responsible. Member Kim stated this information would be helpful. Member Serpa stated her understanding is that pharmacy technicians do not practice independently and are always under the supervision of a pharmacist

Executive Officer Sodergren provided BPC section 4115 (a), "A pharmacy technician may perform packaging, manipulative, repetitive, or other nondiscretionary tasks, only while assisting, and while under the direct supervision and control of a pharmacist. The pharmacist shall be responsible for the duties performed under his or her supervision by a technician."

Member Oh expressed concern that a pharmacist is responsible for the pharmacy technician providing immunizations after six hours of training. Member Brooks inquired about why type of liability and injury could occur. Dr. Oh provided possible injury or permanent nerve damage by the pharmacy technician providing the immunization if the injection technique is not correct. He continued there are more than enough pharmacists who can provide the immunizations.

Member Serpa added nurses and medical assistants currently do immunization and pharmacy technicians do more than counting pills such as preparing chemotherapy and parenteral nutrition. Dr. Serpa didn't want to limit the ways a pharmacy technician can assist the pharmacist.

Members Brooks, Patel and Serpa expressed allowing pharmacy technicians to do this would help the public.

Ms. Marks clarified her comment was regarding civil liability.

Member Oh expressed concern for pharmacists being forced to allow pharmacy technicians to do this due to corporate pressure. Mr. Lippe stated that was a different issue.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Lindsay Gullahorn, CRA/NACDS, spoke with strong support to pursue the waiver and permanent statutory authority as soon as possible. Ms. Gullahorn noted federal guidance released that pharmacy technicians should be able to vaccinate. She added it would allow pharmacists to better plan, increase capacity and better serve patients. She noted the proposal includes training requirements to ensure patient safety is not compromised. She stated it has been demonstrated safe in other states and that pharmacy technicians should be able to administer all vaccines.

Shane Deselle, Professor of Pharmacy at Touro University and Chief Editor of the Research Journal, Research and Social Administrative Pharmacy, commented DHHS ruled pharmacy technicians can safely administer flu vaccines as well as impending COVID vaccine due to the peer reviewed evidence in high rated peer review journals pointing in favor. He noted nationwide studies that indicate pharmacists are in support as well.

Ademola Arè, National Community Pharmacist Association, chose not to comment as what he wanted to say has been said.

Keith Yoshizuka, pharmacist, spoke in support of allowing pharmacy technicians to give the vaccination. He noted training for pharmacy students is largely didactic. He spoke in support of allowing the pharmacy technician to do the mechanical aspect and not decision making. He added for direct supervision the standard is line of sight.

Jessica Langley, Executive Director of Education and Advocacy for the National Health Care Association that offers ExCPT national certification for pharmacy technicians, spoke on behalf of the Coalition for the Advancement of Pharmacy Technician Practice Coalition in support of the proposal and pharmacy technicians providing all vaccines.

Paige Tally, CCAP, commented that CCAP has changed its position and is reluctantly not opposing the proposal. Ms. Tally added CCAP is concerned with a pharmacy technician administering epinephrine as a pharmacist would have to provide direction to administer epinephrine. She noted CCAP wants to make sure that the pharmacist is in view of the patient and pharmacy technician.

The Board heard a comment from a pharmacy technician licensed in California and Nevada. She stated she can administer vaccinations in Nevada and it is extremely helpful to pharmacists to allow them to do consultations. She added it would be helpful in California.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, commented that CPhA sent a letter to the committee with a support in concept position. He noted minor issues including language regarding training, requesting it remain CDC or ACPE as that is what is currently

in law. He requested clarification on how continuing education would be enforced. He stated for the epinephrine, although it is a simple task there is clinical judgment required and it should remain with the pharmacist. He requested the kind of punishment the pharmacy technician would receive should be included.

Jassy Grewal, UFCW, commented the Board doesn't have enough information to change the scope of practice for flu or other vaccines. Ms. Grewal acknowledged the state of emergency but pharmacists provide and can do the service. To render a decision, the Board needs equal comparison of training required for pharmacy technicians. She added the Board needs to do a workforce analysis to understand if pharmacists have the ability to supervise pharmacy technicians administering vaccines. Pharmacists should have strict anti-retaliation protections and should have the ability to reject the additional supervisory role. The pharmacy should be held accountable for the services.

Alexandria Oaks indicated she wanted to make a comment but her audio was not connected to the WebEx.

Lori Walmsley, Walgreens, spoke in support of the motion and continue discussions to expand to non-flu vaccines. She added many other states that have adopted this have realized increase immunization rates. She noted it enhances patient safety and increases access for patients. Idaho began this and hasn't had any patient safety complaints in four years. She added the federal government is in support of the concept.

Rob Geddes, Albertsons Companies, spoke in support of the proposal. He noted Albertsons ran the pilot in Idaho in 2016. He confirmed there has not been one patient safety concern since the beginning. The training provided originally through Washington State University and subsequently through APHA has been great training to prepare pharmacy technicians with good technique to avoid injury. He added vaccination rates have improved. He commented Albertsons is in strong support.

Mark Johnston, CVS Health, commented research overwhelmingly supports pharmacy technicians providing vaccinations. He noted he participated in Idaho's pilot program that was in done in chain and independent pharmacies. He added with current ratios in California, it would be more beneficial if a concurrent ratio increase for immunizing pharmacy technicians could be discussed. He noted the HHS guidance does preempt state law but doesn't include influenza for adults. He noted CVS Health is in support.

Jason Kane, registered pharmacist in California and Nevada, commented in support of anything that will increase the ability to help patients would be greatly appreciated. He noted often there isn't time to immunize the 30 to 40

patients and the patients don't want to wait. He noted he hasn't had to use an EpiPen but believed a pharmacy technician could be trained to use it.

Danielle Tran, pharmacist for 32 years, spoke in support of the proposal which helps increase access for communities. She spoke in support of training pharmacy technicians to help the workload in the community pharmacy.

Chairperson Veale re-read the motion:

Motion: To recommend to the Board to move forward immediately with a policy statement to pursue a waiver through DCA due to COVID-19 to allow for pharmacy technicians to administer influenza vaccinations. In addition, to pursue a permanent statutory change by proposing language to allow pharmacy technicians to administer influenza vaccinations. The committee would like to have a future discussion to expand pharmacy technicians administering vaccinations that include the COVID-19 vaccine.

Support: 8 Oppose: 2 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Oppose
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Oppose
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Support
Weisz	Not Present
Wong	Support

The DCA moderator noted an additional commenter that was originally missed.

Stephen Gray, CSHP, spoke in strong support for proposal and in the future including all vaccines and spoke about liability.

President Lippe confirmed the proposal was passed.

f. Discussion and Consideration of Pharmacy Technician Application Requirements and Common Deficiencies

Chairperson Veale provided as detailed in the meeting materials, there are various pathways to licensure as a pharmacy technician. In the past the Board has undertaken efforts to reduce the deficiency rate for such applications, including development of a video on the application process. The most common deficiencies noted are detailed in the chair report and include:

- 1. The application itself is not complete, e.g. the application is not signed and dated, information is not completed on the form, etc.
- 2. The self-query report is not received in a sealed envelope or the personal identifying information is not consistent with information provided on the application.
- 3. The high school transcript does not reflect a graduation date.
- 4. The applicant did not include a copy of the certification earned.
- 5. The technician training program failed to complete the affidavit correctly.

Chairperson Veale noted long term many of these issues can be resolved through the Board's transition to online application submissions that can be programed with business rules to prevent submission of an application without completed information. In the interim, staff continue to work with technician training programs to address issues. It would appear appropriate to also include application information and common deficiencies in a future issue of *The Script*.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

g. Licensing Statistics

Chairperson Veale referred to the meeting materials for the licensing statistics for the first quarter of the fiscal year.

h. Future Committee Meeting Dates

Chairperson Veale provided the next committee meeting is currently scheduled for January 27, 2021.

The Board took a lunch break at 12:39 p.m. and returned from break at 1:17 p.m.

After returning from break, a roll call was taken. Members present included: Seung Oh, Maria Serpa, Albert Wong, Jason Weisz, Jignesh Patel, Shirley Kim, Ryan Brooks, Lavanza Butler, and Greg Lippe. A quorum was established.

XII. Enforcement and Compounding Committee Report

a. Discussion and Consideration of Recently Signed Legislation Impacting the Practice of Pharmacy

Chairperson Serpa noted she would review all measures and then take comment from the Board and the public.

a. Assembly Bill 1710 (Wood, Chapter 123, Statutes of 2020) Pharmacy Practice: Vaccines

Chairperson Serpa reported AB 1710 provides pharmacists with the authority to independently order and administer FDA authorized or approved COVID-19 vaccines. Meeting materials reflected the support position on the bill.

Chairperson Serpa noted although the implementation should be straightforward, she acknowledged the recent immunization alert that was released by the Board. The Board strongly encouraged pharmacies, designated pharmacists-in-charge, and pharmacists to evaluate their practices of initiating and administering vaccinations and take immediate corrective action to ensure that their practices comply with BPC 4052.8. The Board received a number of inquiries submitted via the ask.inspector and to staff directly requesting that the Board evaluate scenarios to determine compliance. Such an assessment must be done on a case by case basis by the pharmacy and its staff. Dr. Serpa added it is her understanding that there is a wide range of processes being used. The Board suggests consulting with an attorney about processes complying with the law. Additionally, she provided the following questions that may be helpful in assessing operations.

- 1. Who is writing the order for the immunization or directly ordering in the pharmacy system?
- 2. Who is interacting with the patient regarding health, allergy, and other information?
- 3. What functions are currently being performed by non-pharmacist staff and do any such functions require judgement?
- 4. To what extent is the pharmacist involved in the system process? Is it just at the point of administration?

Chairperson Serpa noted specific to AB 1710, early education on the measure would be important to ensure that pharmacists are well position to begin initiating and administering COVID-19 vaccines on January 1, assuming there is an FDA approved or authorized vaccine available.

b. Assembly Bill 2077 (Ting, Chapter 274, Statutes of 2020) Hypodermic Needles and Syringes

Chairperson Serpa reported AB 2077 extends provisions for needle exchange programs. She noted existing law provides authority for a pharmacy to furnish hypodermic needles and syringes for human use without a prescription under specified conditions, including knowledge that such furnishing is for a legitimate medical use. This section provides, that as a public health measure, such furnishing must also occur to prevent the transition of specified conditions, until January 1, 2026.

c. Assembly Bill 2113 (Low, Chapter 186, Statutes of 2020) Refugees, Asylees, and Immigrants: Licensing

Chairperson Serpa reported AB 2113 requires the Board to expedite applications for an applicant who supplies satisfactory evidence to the Board that the applicant is a refugee, been granted political asylum, or possesses a special immigrant visa. She noted in reviewing the information provided in the chair report, this measure should not have an impact from an enforcement perspective; however, she noted that staff will need to make changes to forms, etc. to implement. Additionally, regulations may need to be promulgated.

d. Assembly Bill 3330 (Calderon, Chapter 359, Statutes of 2020) Department of Consumer Affairs: Boards: Licensees: Regulatory Fees

Chairperson Serpa noted the Board did not discuss this next measure that increases the CURES fee that licensees pay to support the CURES System operated by the DOJ. The annual CURES fee will be \$11 for annual renewals or \$22 for licenses that renew biennially for a two-year period and will then reduce to \$9/year or \$18 for biennial renewals.

e. Senate Bill 878 (Jones, Chapter 131, Statutes of 2020) Department of Consumer Affairs Licensing: Applications

Chairperson Serpa noted this measure will require the Board to post its application and renewal processing times. Dr. Serpa noted application times are already posted and included in the Licensing Committee reports.

f. Senate Bill 1474 (Committee on Business, Professions and Economic Development, Chapter 312, Statutes of 2020)

Chairperson Serpa reported SB 1471 extended the Board's Sunset date for one year.

Member Ricardo Sanchez joined the meeting at 1:20 p.m.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

b. Discussion and Consideration of Compounding Animal Drugs from Bulk Drug Substances, Including Federal Law and the FDA Draft Guidance, #256

Chairperson Serpa reported the committee had a robust discussion with public comment. Dr. Serpa noted this is a complicated issue involving federal law and the FDA draft guidance on the issue of compounding from bulk drug substances for animals. Details were included in the meeting materials. The Food and Drug and Cosmetics Act specifies conditions under which extra-label use from compounding of approved animal drugs or approved human drugs is permitted. The extra-label drug use regulation does not permit animal drug compounding from active pharmaceutical ingredients (bulk drugs).

The FDA is working on draft guidance to continue to exercise enforcement discretion under the circumstances when no other medically appropriate treatment options exist. Although still in its draft form, the draft guidance provides conditions under which the FDA states that it will generally exercise enforcement discretion. The Agency may take action when animal drugs are compounded from bulk drug substances that do not meet certain criteria. They do intend to defer to state licensing boards the day-to-day oversight. Additional information was included in the materials.

Chairperson Serpa explained the Board has heard from members of the public of a concern on how the Board is enforcing this provision and confusion regarding the draft guidance. Members of the public also disagree with the FDA. Dr. Serpa reported Executive Officer Sodergren shared inspectors are evaluating each situation on a case-by-case basis and providing education on these issues during inspections.

Chairperson Serpa continued earlier in the year, the Board received information about compounding by California pharmacies using bulk substances rather than sourced from the FDA-approved drugs as required by the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (FD&C Act). Dr. Serpa added the Board received information that pharmacies may be compounding from bulk substances instead of from commercially available products purportedly to reduce costs. The committee also heard comments from Ms. Smiley who provided legal guidance to assist the committee in understanding the responsibilities of the Board.

Chairperson Serpa reported after a lively discussion the committee took no action but put before the Board the following:

Staff will continue to monitor the issue at the federal level and inform the committee of any updates. Staff will continue to educate licensees and monitor for compliance while balancing enforcement discretion and assessment of the individual case-by-case basis.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, expressed concern of practical effects with action by the Board. The FDA has a second draft guidance by default means the FDA recognizes that there are instances where compounding from bulk drug substances is appropriate and medically necessary. He continued for the Board inspectors to issue notice of correction, although not discipline, can lead to disciplinary action and is stating the pharmacist is doing something wrong. If pharmacists are forced to compound using only commercially available products, there are fillers and binders within those commercially available products that are toxic to animals. He requested the Board to reconsider action by Board inspectors. Orders of correction serve as a de facto ban on a practice through these warnings.

Dan Baxter, Executive Director of the California Veterinary Medical Association (CVMA), commented in a letter submitted to the Board. He also provided comment at the Enforcement Committee meeting the day prior. He continued the compounding of animal drug bulk substances is sometimes the only mechanism through which vital medications can be obtained. Mr. Baxter asked that this be kept in mind during the educational process by Board inspectors to prevent a message that could unintentionally result in animals not receiving the medications they need. He noted CVMA does not disagree with the FDA but disagrees with any interpretation of the federal regulation that would prohibit the compounding of bulk substances in a veterinary application.

Committee Recommendation (Motion): Board staff shall monitor this issue and keep the committee informed of emerging issues on the federal level, especially in regard to the draft guidance. The Board shall continue its educational role. The Board should evaluate situations on a case-by-case basis as they come up regarding this federal law.

Support: 10 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 1

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Not Present
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

c. Discussion and Consideration of the Use of Peptides in Compounding Drug Products Under Section 503A of Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FD&C Act)

Chairperson Serpa provided information in the chair report details the relevant Section 503A of the FD&C Act describes the conditions under which a compounded drug product may qualify for an exemption from sections 501(a)(2)(B), 502(f)(1) and 505 of the FD&C Act. Conditions include that the drug product is compounded by a licensed pharmacist in a State-licensed pharmacy or Federal facility or by a licensed physician pursuant to a valid prescription for an identified individual patient that indicates the compounded drug is necessary for the identified patient. Further, if the drug product is compounded using a bulk drug substance it is included in the report.

Chairperson Serpa continued over the past several months staff have identified pharmacies that are compounding using peptides. Board staff have confirmed with the FDA that many peptides are not eligible for the exemptions provided by section 503A of the FD&C Act as they do not satisfy the criteria for a bulk substance nor do they meet the conditions described in the "Interim Policy on Compounding Using Bulk Drug Substances Under Section 503A of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act." Board staff are conducting investigations where appropriate and are aware of pharmacies that have been issued 483 observations by the FDA.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

d. Discussion and Consideration of Draft Information for Respondents Describing the Administrative Case Process

Chairperson Serpa reminded the Members during the last meeting, the committee heard a presentation on the Administrative Case Process. Dr. Serpa encouraged Board Members and public to review the presentation. It was suggested at the last Board Meeting, it would be helpful to provide some general information to aid respondents in gaining a general understanding of the process and licensee rights. Provided in the meeting materials are a draft FAQ and flow chart to help licensees understand the process and their rights and responsibilities

Committee Recommendation (Motion): Finalize the Administrative Case Process Information Tools, post on the Board's website and distribute them to respondents in the administrative case process. Request Board staff to explore the possibility of the AG's Office including this information as part of the package of information provided to respondents.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Support: 9 Oppose: 0 Abstain: 0 Not Present: 2

Board Member	Vote	
Brooks	Support	
Butler	Support	
Kim	Not Present	
Lippe	Support	
Oh	Support	
Patel	Support	
Sanchez	Support	
Serpa	Support	
Veale	Not Present	
Weisz	Support	
Wong	Support	

e. Discussion and Consideration of Proposal to Develop an Alternative Enforcement Model

Chairperson Serpa advised the Board the committee had a robust discussion on the potential of an alternative enforcement model to reduce time and cost associated with resolving a disciplinary matter. She noted the original committee discussion based on the Physical Therapy Board's model that provides an option for pre-pleading settlement of a matter where the outcome is public letter of reprimand. Subsequent discussions included proposals to include Board Members in the settlement process or to include an oral conference as part of the process. It was discussed at the subsequent Board Meeting where the issue was tabled.

Board counsel had concerns regarding the concepts and requested time to evaluate those suggestions. Recently during the presentation of the administrative process, the committee was reminded that the administrative case process has two fundamental guiding principles: first, due process for the respondent and second, public protection. Deputy Attorney General Jarvis reminded the committee that the state has a duty and responsibility to ensure the licensee is competent and trustworthy. One of the concerns discussed was the administrative case process showed an assumption of guilt. However, there is no presumption of guilt after the filing of an accusation. The Board carries the burden of proof to establish a basis for discipline. Until that burden is met, there is no presumption that the basis for discipline exists.

Ms. Smiley provided the memo to the committee and public in the meeting materials that reviewed the practical challenges identified. Dr. Serpa reviewed a few of Ms. Smiley's concerns that Dr. Serpa also found worrisome:

- Licensee would have to agree to waive administrative adjudication and admit to the allegations to participate in an alternative enforcement process. Any disagreement with the allegations wouldn't qualify for the alternative enforcement model.
- 2. If an agreement is not reached, this could result in additional time and cost for a second hearing in addition to legal issues that could arise on admissibility of the record.
- 3. If Board Members participated in an alternative process, there could be Open Meeting Act considerations and could require Board Members who participate may have to recuse themselves from future discussion if an agreement is not met.
- 4. Alternative process would require a public meeting to discuss the case with Board Members in public unlike current settlement agreements that are conducted with the respondent and Board staff.

Chairperson Serpa reviewed investigation statistics to review facts and make decisions based on facts and not hearsay or individual opinion. The data presented by outcome over the three years yields only 11% of substantiated events of result in a referral to the Attorney General's Office. Of those 11%: 32% result in a default decision; 55% resolved via settlements; and 14% go to administrative hearing.

Chairperson Serpa noted the data shows that it is the longest processing time for stipulated settlements and a significant time to hearing. Executive Officer Sodergren explained to the committee there are many reasons settlement can take longer because in some cases respondents are interested in settling quickly

and in other cases respondents only become active in the settlement process as the hearing date approaches.

Both models reviewed would require statutory changes. The committee has no motion for the Board and will continue to discuss the issue.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, commented there is a need for an alternative enforcement model. He appreciated the opportunity to discuss further and clarify intent at the next committee meeting.

f. Discussion and Consideration of Proposal of Board's Policy Encouraging Pharmacies to Report to Law Enforcement Acts Involving Drug Diversion by an Employee

Chairperson Serpa said during the January 2020 Board Meeting, the Board approved a policy statement intended to encourage pharmacies to refer drug diversion cases to local law enforcement agencies for possible prosecution. Such referral would be in addition to mandatory reporting to the Board.

Board Policy:

In recognition of the ongoing national opioid crisis and in addition the mandatory reporting obligations to the Board included in BPC 4104, the board encourages pharmacies and pharmacists to contact local law enforcement for guidance on matters involving narcotics diversion by its employees.

Chairperson Serpa continued meeting materials indicate that referrals to law enforcement are occurring; however, it may not be occurring with the frequency the Board would expect. The committee recommended including the Board's policy statement in communications with licensees when seeking additional information regarding drug losses.

Committee Recommendation (Motion): Include the Board's policy statement in communications with licensees when seeking additional information regarding drug losses.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Board Member	Vote
Brooks	Support
Butler	Support
Kim	Support
Lippe	Support
Oh	Support
Patel	Support
Sanchez	Support
Serpa	Support
Veale	Not Present
Weisz	Support
Wong	Support

g. Discussion and Consideration of Disciplinary Cases and Incorporation of Ethics Program Requirement

Chairperson Serpa noted requirements for the ethics program are established in CCR section 1773.5. Recently the Board received a request to discuss what appeared to be a decrease in the number of disciplinary orders that include, as a condition of probation, completion of an ethics course.

Chairperson Serpa noted information about the ethics course were included in the meeting materials and highlighted a few requirements including a program must include a minimum of 22 hours, at least 14 of which are contact hours and at least eight additional hours for preparation, evaluation, and assessment. The cost for the program offered by PBI Education is \$1,875. Data for those individuals that completed the PBI training are provided in the meeting materials; however, staff was unable to secure data from IMQ. IMQ until recently was another course provider but has since closed. The data confirm there is a decline in requiring an ethics program as a condition of probation. Staff indicated respondents are actively seeking ethics to be proactive for mitigation for their upcoming disciplinary process.

Dr Yoshizuka from Touro University commented during committee public comment that possibly schools of pharmacy could help.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

h. Review and Discussion of Enforcement Statistics

Chairperson Serpa referred to the enforcement statistics in the meeting materials.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Future Committee Meeting Dates

Chairperson Serpa referred to the future committee meeting dates in the meeting materials.

XIII. Legislation and Regulation Committee Report

a. Discussion and Consideration of Legislation Impacting the Practice of Pharmacy, the Board's Jurisdiction or Board Operations

Chairperson Lippe advised this report is for information only and intended to provide members with the outcomes of the various measures considered by the Board. As the information is for information only, Mr. Lippe advised he would seek member and public comments after the updates.

1. Assembly Bill 1710 (Wood, Chapter 123, Statutes of 2020) Pharmacy Practice: Vaccines

Chairperson Lippe advised this measure provides pharmacists with the authority to independently order and administer FDA authorized or approved COVID-19 vaccines. The Board had a support position on this measure. The measure was chaptered.

2. Assembly Bill 2028 (Aguiar-Curry) State Agencies: Meetings

Chairperson Lippe advised AB 2028 would have amended provisions of the Open Meetings Act. The Board had established an Oppose Unless amended position on the measure. Subsequent amendments were made that would have addressed the Board's concerns; however, the bill failed passage.

3. Assembly Bill 2077 (Ting, Chapter 274, Statutes of 2020) Hypodermic Needles and Syringes

Chairperson Lippe advised AB 2077 bill extends, until January 1, 2026, the sunset date of current law that allows the retail sale or furnishing of a hypodermic needle or syringe to a person 18 years of age or older without a prescription. The Board had a support position on the measure. The measure was chaptered.

4. Assembly Bill 2113 (Low, Chapter 186, Statutes of 2020) Refugees, Asylees, and Immigrants: Licensing

Chairperson Lippe advised Assembly Bill 2113 will require Boards within the DCA to expedite the initial licensure process for an applicant who supplies satisfactory evidence to the Board that the applicant is a refugee, been granted political asylum, or possesses a special immigrant visa. The Board did not have a position on this measure. The measure was chaptered.

5. Assembly Bill 2549 (Salas) Department of Consumer Affairs: Temporary Licenses

Chairperson Lippe advised Members, AB 2549 failed passage. The measure would have required the Board to issue temporary licenses to military spouses and require the Board to promulgate regulations. Under the provisions of the measure, the temporary license would have been good for up to 12 months. During prior discussions of the measure, the Board expressed concerns with the measure as the Board would have lost the ability to assess for minimum competency prior to issuing a temporary pharmacist license. The Board had an Oppose Unless Amended position on the measure.

6. Assembly Bill 2983 (Holden) Pharmacies: Automatic Refills

Chairperson Lippe advised AB 2983 also failed passage. This measure would have prohibited a pharmacy from automatically contacting a prescriber to request refill authorization unless the prescriber or patient had expressly authorized such contact. The Board did not have a position on the measure.

7. Assembly Bill 3045 (Gray) Department of Consumer Affairs: Boards: Veterans

Chairperson Lippe advised AB 3045 would have required Boards within the DCA to issue a license to an applicant if the applicant met specified requirements, including that the applicant was honorably discharged from the armed forces, or married or in a domestic partnership or other legal union with an active duty member. This measure also failed passage. The Board established an Oppose Unless Amended position

because of concerns about the Board's inability to assess for minimum competency.

8. Assembly Bill 3342 (Bauer-Kahan) Child Day Care Facilities: Epinephrine Auto Injectors

Chairperson Lippe advised the Board established a Support position on AB 3342. As related to the Board's jurisdiction, this measure would have authorized a pharmacy to furnish epinephrine auto-injectors to the State Department of Health Care Services under the program created pursuant to this bill, subject to similar requirements. This measure failed passage.

9. Senate Bill 878 (Jones, Chapter 131, Statutes of 2020) Department of Consumer Affairs Licensing: Applications

Chairperson Lippe advised SB 878, which was signed by the Governor, will require Boards within the DCA to prominently display the current time frame for processing initial and renewal license applications on its internet website. As the Committee and Board previously discussed, the Board publicly reports application processing times as part of the quarterly Licensing Committee and Board meetings. The Board did not have an established position on the measure.

10. Senate Bill 1474 (Committee on Business, Professions and Economic Development, Chapter 312, Statutes of 2020)

Chairperson Lippe advised SB 1474 extends the operations of several Boards for one year to allow for review by oversight committees in the coming year. As previously discussed, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the unprecedented nature of the 2020 Legislative Session, oversight review was postponed.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Board Member Debbie Veale returned to the meeting at 2:06 p.m.

b. Board Adopted Regulations Approved by the Office of Administrative Law

Chairperson Lippe advised the Regulations portion of the report is also informational only. As such member and public comment will be following each agenda section. Comments can extend to any of the regulations covered.

1. Proposed Regulation to Add Title 16, Section 1714.3, Community Pharmacy Staffing

Chairperson Lippe advised the Board had one regulation package that was recently approved by the Office of Administrative Law. The community pharmacy staffing regulation establishes the criteria a pharmacy must meet to identify and ensure a person is assigned to assist a pharmacist, in compliance with BPC section 4113.5. This regulation took effect on September 15, 2020.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments. Member Butler commented she appreciated this and thanked.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

- c. Discussion and Consideration of Board Adopted Regulations Undergoing Final Review by the Office of Administrative Law
 - Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16, Sections 1769 and 1770, Substantial Relationship and Rehabilitation Criteria

Chairperson Lippe advised when finalized this proposal will increase transparency and provide clarity to license applicants with respect to the rehabilitation criteria the board considers when evaluating an applicant's eligibility for licensure. The OAL decision is expected by October 27 unless an extension is granted under an executive order issued by the Governor. Executive Officer Sodergren advised an extension was granted and OAL has an additional 60 days.

2. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16, Sections 1702, 1702.1, 1702.2, 1702.5, Renewal Requirements

Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal updates the renewal requirement language to apply similarly across most licensing programs. Such an approach will reduce administrative workload associated when new licensing programs are established. The OAL decision is due November 2; however, it may be extended under the provisions of the Governor's executive order.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

- d. Discussion and Consideration of Board Adopted Regulations Undergoing Formal Review by the Department of Consumers Affairs or the Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency
 - 1. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16, Section 1707, Off-Site Storage

Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal amends the Board's regulation regarding the waiver requirements for off-site storage of records. Under the proposed revisions, entities previously cited for a records violation will be eligible for such a waiver. The measure was adopted by the executive officer on June 3, 2020, consistent with our delegation after no negative comments were received. The proposal is currently undergoing formal review by Agency.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

- e. Discussion and Consideration of Board Adopted Regulations Staff Drafting Final Rulemaking Documents for Final Review by the Department of Consumer Affairs or the Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency
 - Proposed Regulations to Amend Title 16 CCR Sections 1780-1783 et seq.,
 Related to Dangerous Drug Distributors and Third-Party Logistics Providers

Chairperson Lippe advised the Board currently has one regulation under this category, Proposed Regulations to Amend Title 16, CCR Sections 1708-1783 Related to Dangerous Drug Distributors and Third-Party Logistics Providers. This proposal establishes the regulatory framework for third-party logistics providers. The measure was adopted by the Board on July 27.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

f. Discussion and Consideration of Board Approved Regulations Undergoing Pre-Notice Review by the Department of Consumer Affairs or the Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency

- 1. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1715 to Update Self-Assessment Forms 17M13 and 17M-14
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal updates the Self-Assessment forms 17M-13 (rev. 10/16) and 17M-14 (rev. 10/16) as incorporated by reference in Title 16 CCR section 1715. Additionally, this regulation updates section 1715 with clarifying language as to the completion and certification requirements of the self-assessment forms. He noted it has been undergoing Pre-Notice review since December 2018.
- 2. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1784 to Update the Wholesaler/3PL Self-Assessment Form 17M-26
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal updates the Self-Assessment form 17M-26 (rev. 10/16) as incorporated by reference in Title 16 CCR section 1784. Additionally, this regulation updates section 1784 with clarifying language as to the completion and certification requirements of the self-assessment form. This regulation proposal has also been undergoing Pre-Notice review since December 2018.
- Proposed Permanent Regulation to Add and Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1747 Related to Independent HIV Preexposure and Postexposure Prophylaxis Furnishing
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal will make permanent the emergency regulations that establish the criteria for training programs to meet in order to be offered to pharmacists so that the pharmacists may independently initiate and furnish preexposure and postexposure prophylaxis. Pre-Notice review on this package started on February 7, 2020.
- 4. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1715.65 Related to Inventory Reconciliation
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal amends and clarifies the requirements for the completion of the inventory reconciliation report. The package was referred to DCA for Pre-Notice review on May 11, 2020.
- 5. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1715.6 Related to Drug Losses
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal amends the drug loss reporting requirements to further define when drug losses must be reported to

increase clarity for the regulated public. The package was referred to DCA for Pre-Notice review on June 3, 2020.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

- g. Discussion and Consideration of Board Approved Text to Initiate Rulemaking –
 Staff Drafting Documents for Pre-Notice Review by the Department of Consumer
 Affairs and the Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency
 - 1. Proposed Regulations to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1793.5 Related to the Pharmacy Technician Application, Section 1793.6 Related to the Pharmacy Technician Training Requirements, and Section 1793.65 Related to the Pharmacy Technician Certification Programs
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal establishes the training requirements and certification programs and updates the application for licensure for pharmacy technicians. He noted that this regulation package was originally approved by the Board in October 2016. Changes have been requested on a few occasions. The package was resubmitted for Pre-Notice review in October 2018 and returned to the Board for amendments to implement provisions of AB 2138 in December 2019. Most recently, on September 3, 2020, the rulemaking package was again returned to Board staff. Staff will be reviewing the recommendations offered by DCA to determine the appropriate course of action.
 - 2. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1709 Related to Pharmacy Ownership, Management, and Control, Including Through Trusts
 - Chairperson Lippe advised this proposal amends the Board's regulations regarding ownership to include provisions relating to trust ownership of pharmacies. The package was returned to the Board on April 22, 2020. He noted this package was originally approved by the Board in October 2016. As with the prior regulation, changes have been requested on several occasions. He was advised that subsequent to the release of the meeting materials, Board staff provided the requested information to DCA.
 - 3. Proposed Regulation to Amend Title 16 CCR Section 1704 Related to Address Change Notification

Chairperson Lippe advised during the July 2020 meeting, the Board approved initiation of a rulemaking to require a licensee to maintain a current email address with the Board, should the licensee have one.

4. Proposed Regulation to Add Title 16 Section 1708.1 Related to the Temporary Closure of Facilities

Chairperson Lippe advised during the July 2020 meeting, the Board also approved initiation of a rulemaking that will establish notification requirements of the temporary closure of licensed facilities.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

h. Future Committee Meeting Dates

Chairperson Lippe advised the next committee meeting is scheduled for January 27, 2021.

XVI. Executive Officer Report

 a. Discussion of Board's Response to COVID-19 Pandemic and Actions Taken by Other Agencies

Executive Officer Sodergren advised the Board continues to dedicate significant resource to its response to the COVID-19 public health crisis.

Ms. Sodergren noted as the conditions of the pandemic continue to evolve, decisions on waivers only occur after thoughtful consideration. In general, when making decisions on waivers, the Board makes a decision in the best interest of Californians. As healthcare locations resume services, openings of previously closed facilities resume, and in recognition of variances in local conditions, some broad waivers have expired. Whether the waiver is extended or expired, notification is sent via the Board's subscriber alert system and the Board's website is updated. The Board also reviews requests for site-specific waivers. Ms. Sodergren noted at the December 2020 meeting, the Board will have the opportunity to revisit this agenda item as many of the waivers are reaching the limit of time delegated to President Lippe by the Board.

Ms. Sodergren reported in addition to the Board's waiver process, on March 30, 2020, Governor Newsom signed Executive Order N 39-20 granting the DCA Director

the authority to waive licensing requirements and amend scope of practice and any accompanying regulations to facilitate the continued provision of care to individuals. On August 25, 2020, the DCA Director issued an order that waives specified professional licensing requirements and amends the scopes of practice of pharmacists and pharmacy technicians to allow them to perform waived, point-of-care tests used to detect SARS-CoV-2. Along with the waiver, guidance was released to inform and educate pharmacies, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians of clinical laboratory requirements that apply under the DCA Order.

Ms Sodergren reported as part of Operation Warp Speed, Board staff has issued temporary licenses to wholesalers partnering with the federal government to distribute vaccinations.

Ms. Sodergren advised the Board staff continue to respond to the fluidity of the pandemic by making adjustments to operations to ensure the safety of staff and the public. There continue to be several limiting factors that must be addressed long term to sustain this rotational teleworking schedule, most notably more robust and portable computers and a decreased reliance on paper. Board staff continues to complete internal assessments to identify the best methods to make the necessary operational changes to facilitate teleworking while minimizing impacts to processing time frames. Board field staff have resumed field inspections and work with the facilities to ensure safety.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments; however, no comments were made.

b. Update on the Sunset Review Process

Ms. Sodergren advised Board staff was recently notified that oversight hearings could resume in the near future. However, no potential hearing dates or logistics have yet been finalized. As part of the communication, committee staff have advised that oversight committees will use the sunset reports submitted last year but have requested that relevant updates be provided. In addition, supplemental questions related to COVID-19 have been provided that require response.

Ms. Sodergren requested the Board's consideration of a recommendation to delegate authority to the Board president or another member to work with staff to finalize the report to meet the submission deadline. Alternatively, the Board could schedule a meeting the end of November to review the supplemental report.

The Board discussed options and determined having a meeting to review the document in late November.

c. Biannual Report of the California Practice Standards and Jurisprudence Examination for Pharmacists (CPJE) Examination Statistics and the North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX)

Ms. Sodergren advised the Board published a biannual report of the pass rates for the CPJE and NAPLEX exam. Meeting materials include the aggregate information for examinations administered between May and September 2020. The report includes pass rate information for the 1,934 exams administered during the reporting period. The overall pass rate for the CPJE is 63.7 percent and is 92.5 percent for the NAPLEX. This information will also be posted on the website.

Members of the Board were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Member Butler inquired about Board inspectors participation in checking requirements for statewide face mask and social distancing. Ms. Sodergren advised as needed Board inspectors are educating facilities where they can improve their practices if needed and guidance documents.

Members of the public were provided with an opportunity to provide comments.

Danny Martinez, CPhA, inquired about the mask compliance by Board inspectors. Executive Officer Sodergren provided majority of the time if an issue is addressed, the Board inspectors are providing education and guidance documents.

XVII. Update from the Department of Consumer Affairs

Carrie Holmes, Deputy Director for Board and Bureau Relations, Department of Consumer Affairs, welcomed Board Member Jason Weisz as the newest Board Member.

Ms. Holmes explained her top priority is appointments. Ms. Holmes provided an overview of the Board of Pharmacy appointments. The Board has two vacancies and three members have reached their term limits.

Ms. Holmes advised some members may receive a letter from the Office of Human Resources about the part-time/seasonal employees retirement program. CalHR has changed its criteria and provided new guidance that members are no longer eligible. All members will be removed and contributions from the date of appointment will be refunded to the members as well as corrected wage and tax statements for applicable tax years. Please contact Daniella Ruffin with the Department of Consumer Affairs Office of Human Resources.

Ms. Holmes advised in July 2020, DCA office reopened after a temporary closure due to state and local stay at home orders to prevent the spread of COVID-19. DCA offices

remain open with preventative measures in place to safeguard the health and safety of employees and visitors.

XVIII. Closed Session Matters

The Board completed all closed session matters on October 27, 2020.

XIV. Adjournment

The Board adjourned at approximately 2:46 p.m.



California State Board of Pharmacy 2720 Gateway Oaks Drive, Ste. 100 Sacramento, CA 95833

Phone: (916) 518-3100 Fax: (916) 574-8618

www.pharmacy.ca.gov

Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency Department of Consumer Affairs Gavin Newsom, Governor



AUTOMATED DRUG DELIVERY SYSTEM SELF-ASSESSMENT

Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 4427.7(a) requires the pharmacy holding an automated drug delivery system (ADDS) license complete an annual self-assessment, performed pursuant to section 1715.1 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations, evaluating the pharmacy's compliance with pharmacy law relating to the use of the ADDS. The assessment shall be performed annually **before July 1 of every year** by the pharmacist-in-charge of each pharmacy under section 4029 (Hospital Pharmacy) or section 4037 (Pharmacy). The pharmacist-in-charge must also complete a self-assessment within 30 days whenever; (1) a new automated drug delivery system permit has been issued, or (2) there is a change in the pharmacist-in-charge and becomes the new pharmacist-in-charge of an automated drug delivery system, or (3) there is a change in the licensed location of an automated drug delivery system to a new address. The primary purpose of the self-assessment is to promote compliance through self-examination and education. All information regarding operation, maintenance, compliance, error, omissions, or complaints pertaining to the ADDS shall be included in this Self-Assessment.

All references to Business and Professions Code (BPC) are to Chapter 9, Division 2; California Code of Regulations (CCR) are to Title 16; and Code of Federal Regulations (21 CFR) to Title 21 unless otherwise noted.

The self-assessment must be completed and retained in the pharmacy for three (3) years after performed.

Please mark the appropriate box for each item. If "NO", enter an explanation and timeframe when the deficiency will be completed on the "CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE" lines at the end of the section. If more space is needed, you may add additional sheets.

Pharmacy Name:		
Address:		
City:		
Phone:		
Fax number:		
Website:		
Pharmacy License #:		
Expiration Date:		
DEA Registration #:		
DEA Expiration Date:		
DEA Inventory Date:		
Last C2 Inventory Reconciliation Date	(CCR 1715.65(c)):	
Pharmacy Hours: M-F:		

	PIC:			RPH#
	ADDS License #:			
	ADDS Expiration D	ate:		
	ADDS Address:			
	City:			
	ADDS Hours:	M-F:	Saturday_	Sunday
	Please explain if th		e different than the pharma	
	FOR ALL TYPES OF	ADDS: COMPLET	TE SECTIONS 1, 2 AND 3	
	SECTION 1: DEFIN	TIONS/TYPE OF	ADDS DEVICE USED	
	or activities other t distribution of drug	han compoundings. An ADDS, sha e movement of d	g or administration, relative t Il collect, control and maintain rugs into and out of the syste	all transaction information to
Vec No N/	IDENTIFY THE TYPE	OF ADDS DEVIC	E USED	
Yes No N/		uses an APDS - "	Automated PATIENT dispens	ing system " an ADDS for
			d drugs directly to the patient	
	•	• .	4119.11(b)(2), 4017.3(c)]	s pursuant to prior
	•	t dose drugs for		n," an ADDS for the storage ersons authorized to perform
	1.3 The pharmacy u	ses an AUDS – " A	Automated UNIT DOSE syster	n ," an ADDS for the storage
	and retrieval of uni	t dose drugs for	•	to patients by a physician in a
Voc No N/	SECTION 2: LOCAT	ION OF DEVICES		
Yes No N/	2.1 Provides pharm for discount drug p defined. The APDS	rograms under for need not be at toons are met. "Co	overed entity" as defined by se	h the use of an APDS as rlying operating pharmacy if all
			ugh an ADDS <u>adjacent to the</u> . [BPC 4427.3(b)(1)]	secured pharmacy area of the
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/	18)	Page 2 of 33	PIC Initials

Yes No N/	
	2.3 Provides pharmacy services through an ADDS in <u>a health facility</u> licensed pursuant to section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code (Long Term Care (LTC)) that complies with section 1261.6 of the Health and Safety Code. [BPC 4427.3(b)(2)]
	2.4 Provides pharmacy services through <u>a clinic</u> licensed pursuant to section 1204 or 1204.1 of the Health and Safety Code, or section 4180 or 4190 of Business and Professions Code. [BPC 4427.3(b)3)]
	2.5 Provides pharmacy services through a <u>correctional clinic</u> . [BPC 4187.1, 4427.3(b)(4)]
	2.6 Provides pharmacy services through a <u>medical office</u> . [BPC 4427.3(b)(5), 4427.6(j)]
	2.7 <u>AUDS operated by a licensed hospital pharmacy</u> , as defined in section 4029, and is used solely to provide doses administered to patients while in a licensed general acute care hospital facility or a licensed acute psychiatric hospital facility, as defined in subdivision (a) and (b) of section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code, shall be exempt from the requirement of obtaining an ADDS license, if the licensed hospital pharmacy owns or leases the AUDS and owns the dangerous drugs and dangerous devices in the AUDS. The AUDS shall comply with all other requirements for an ADDS in Article 25. The licensed hospital pharmacy shall maintain a list of the locations of each AUDS it operates and shall make the list available to the board upon request. [BPC4427.2(i)]
	Note: An ADDS license is not required for technology, installed <u>within the secured licensed</u> <u>premises area of a pharmacy,</u> used in the selecting, counting, packaging, and labeling of dangerous drugs and dangerous devices. [BPC 4427.2(j)]
	SECTION 3: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL TYPES OF ADDS (Answer N/A if licensure not required)
Yes No N/	·
	3.2 The ADDS license was issued to a holder of a current, valid, and active pharmacy license of a pharmacy located and licensed in California. [BPC 4427.2(b)]
	3.3 Each ADDS has a separate license. [BPC 4427.2(c)]
	 3.4 The licensed ADDS meets the following conditions: [BPC 4427.2(d)] Use of the ADDS is consistent with legal requirements. The proposed location for installation of the ADDS met the requirements of section 4427.3 and the ADDS is secure from access and removal by unauthorized individuals. The pharmacy's policies and procedures related to the ADDS include appropriate security measures and monitoring of the inventory to prevent theft and diversion.

drug losses from the ADDS inventory, as required by law. Yes No N/A \square 3.5 A prelicensure inspection was conducted within 30 days of a completed application for the ADDS license at the proposed location(s). [BPC 4427.2(e)] List date(s) of pre-license inspection(s): \square 3.6 The pharmacy is aware a relocation of an ADDS shall require a new application for licensure. [BPC 4427.2(e)] \square \square 3.7. The pharmacy is aware a replacement of an ADDS shall require notification to the board within 30 days. [BPC 4427.2(e)] 3.8 The pharmacy is aware the ADDS license will be canceled by operation of law if the underlying pharmacy license is not current, valid, and active. Upon reissuance or reinstatement of the underlying pharmacy license, a new application for an ADDS license is submitted to the board. [BPC 4427.2(f)] 3.9 The pharmacy is aware the holder of an ADDS license will advise the board in writing within 30 days if use of an ADDS is discontinued. [BPC 4427.2(g)] \square 3.10 The ADDS license(s) was/were renewed annually, and the renewal date is the same as the underlying pharmacy license. [BPC 4427.2(h)] \square \square 3.11 The ADDS is placed and operated inside an enclosed building, with a premises address, at a location approved by the board. [BPC 4427.3(a)] \square \square 3.12 Prior to installation, the pharmacy holding the ADDS license and the location where the ADDS is placed pursuant to subdivision (b) of Business and Professions Code section 4427.3, jointly developed and implemented written policies and procedures to ensure safety, accuracy, accountability, security, patient confidentiality, and maintenance of the ADDS, as well as quality, potency, and purity of the drugs and devices. The policies and procedures are maintained at the location of the ADDS and at the pharmacy holding the ADDS license. [BPC 4427.3(c)] \square 3.13 Each ADDS is operated under the supervision of the pharmacy holding the ADDS license. [BPC 4427.4(b)]

Page 4 of 33

PIC Initials

17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)

• The pharmacy's policy and procedures included provisions for reporting to the board

Yes No N/A				
	3.14 The ADDS is considered an extension and part of the pharmacy holding the ADDS license, regardless of the ADDS location, and is subject to inspection pursuant to BPC 4008. [BPC 4427.4(c)]			
	3.15 Drugs and devices stored in an ADDS will be deemed part of the inventory and the responsibility of the pharmacy holding the ADDS license, and the drugs and devices dispensed from the ADDS shall be considered to have been dispensed by the pharmacy. [BPC 4427.4(d)]			
	3.16 The stocking and restocking of an ADDS is performed by a pharmacist, or by a pharmacy technician or intern pharmacist under the supervision of a pharmacist, except for an ADDS located in a health facility pursuant to HSC 1250, where the stocking and restocking of the ADDS may be performed in compliance with HSC 1261.6. [BPC 4427.4(e)(1)]			
	3.17 Access to the ADDS is controlled and tracked using an identification or password system or biosensor. [BPC 4427.4(e)(2)]			
	3.18 The ADDS makes a complete and accurate record of all transactions including all users accessing the system and all drugs added to, or removed from, the system. [BPC 4427.4(e)(3)]			
	3.19 Are drugs or devices not immediately transferred into an ADDS upon arrival at the ADDS location, stored for no longer than 48 hours in a secured room within the ADDS location approved by the board under section 4427.3 and upon retrieval of the dangerous drugs and devices from the secured storage is an inventory taken to detect any losses or overages? [BPC 4427.4(f)]			
	3.20 Prior to installation, and annually thereafter, the pharmacy holding the ADDS license provides training on the operation and use of the ADDS to the pharmacy personnel and to personnel using the ADDS at the location where the ADDS is placed pursuant to BPC 4427.3(b). [BPC 4427.5]			
	3.21 The pharmacy complies with all recordkeeping and quality assurance requirements established in pharmacy law and regulations, and maintains records within the licensed pharmacy holding the ADDS license and separate from other pharmacy records. [BPC 4427.7(b)]			
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE			

CHECK OFF THE TYPE OF ADDS USED BY THE PHARMACY AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) AS IT APPLIES TO THE TYPE OF ADDS THE PHARMACY IS USING.

Please Note: The Pharmacist-in-Charge of the pharmacy and the owner of the ADDS shall sign the Certification Acknowledgment on page 33 after completing the assessment. ☐ SECTION 4 – APDS used to provide pharmacy service to covered entities and medical professionals contracted with a covered entity. ☐ SECTION 5 – ADDS adjacent to the secured pharmacy area and-or located in Medical Offices. ☐ SECTION 6 – ADDS in a health facility pursuant to HSC 1250 that complies with HSC 1261.6 (LTC). ☐ SECTION 7 – APDS through a clinic pursuant to HSC 1204 or 1204.1 or BPC 4180 or 4190. ☐ SECTION 8 – ADDS operated by a correctional clinic. ☐ SECTION 9 - AUDS used for dispensing pursuant to BPC 4056 (Drug Room) or BPC 4068 (when the hospital pharmacy is closed and no pharmacist is available). SECTION 4: APDS USED TO PROVIDE PHARMACY SERVICES TO COVERED ENTITIES AND MEDICAL PROFESSIONALS CONTRACTED WITH A COVERED ENTITY A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS Yes No N/A 4.1 A Covered Entity May Contract with Pharmacy to Provide Services- The operating pharmacy providing pharmacy services to the patients of the covered entity, including, unless prohibited by any other law, patients enrolled in the Medi-Cal program, shall be under contract with the covered entity as described in BPC section 4126 to provide those pharmacy services through the use of the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(a)(2)] 4.2 Contracts between the covered entities and the pharmacy shall comply with the guidelines published by the Health Resources and Services Administration and are available for inspection by Board during normal business hours. [BPC 4126(a)] □□□ 4.3 Drugs purchased and received pursuant to section 256b of Title 42 USC shall be segregated from the pharmacy's other drug stock by physical or electronic means. [BPC 4126(b)] 4.4 All records of acquisition and disposition of these drugs shall be readily retrievable in a form separate from the pharmacy's other records. [BPC 4126(b)] 4.5 The drugs shall be returned to the distributor from which the drugs were obtained if drugs to be dispensed to patient of a covered entity pursuant to section 256b of Title 42USC cannot be distributed because of a change in circumstances of the covered entity or the pharmacy. [BPC 4126(c)]

Yes No N/	A 4.6 A licensee that participates in a contract to di	spense preferentially priced drugs pursuant to
	this section shall not have both a pharmacy and	a wholesaler license. [BPC 4126(d)]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COM	MPLETION DATE
Yes No N/	B. UNDERLYING OPERATING PHARMACY	
	4.7 The operating pharmacy has obtained a licensincludes the address of the APDS location and the site. [BPC 4119.11(a)(1)]	•
	4.8 A separate license was obtained for each APD concurrent with the pharmacy license. (Note: The APDS at an address for which the Board has issu 4119.11(a)(8), 4107]	e Board may issue a license for operation of an
	4.9 A prelicensure inspection of the proposed AP 30 days after Board receipt of the APDS applicat	•
	Date of Inspection:	
	4.10 The pharmacy will submit a new APDS licens current APDS is relocated. [BPC 4119.11(a)(9)]	sure application for Board approval if the
	4.11 The pharmacy will notify the Board within 3 discontinuing an APDS. [BPC 4119.11(a)(9), 4119	•
	4.12 A new APDS licensure application will be subunderlying operating pharmacy's permit being c (Once cancelled, a new APDS license can only be reissued or reinstated.) [BPC 4119.11(a)(10)]	ancelled, not current, not valid, or inactive.
	4.13 The pharmacy does not have more than 15 pharmacy under this section. [BPC 4119.11(d)(10	,
	1	2
	3	_ 4

	5	_6
	7	_8
	9	_10
	11	_ 12
	13	_14
	15	_
es No N//	4.14 The operating pharmacy will maintain the wr after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4119	•
	4.15 The operating pharmacy of an APDS has comp CCR 1715 or BPC 4427.7(a) evaluating the pharma to the use of the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(i)]	•
	Date of Last Self-Assessment:	
	4.16 The operating pharmacy has complied with a requirements pursuant to BPC 4119.11 and those holding the APDS and separately from the other p	records will be maintain within the pharmacy
	4.17 The pharmacy is aware that the drugs stored pharmacy's drug inventory and the drugs dispens been dispensed by that pharmacy. [BPC 4119.11(ed by the APDS shall be considered to have
	 4.18 The underlying operating pharmacy is solely reference. The security of the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(a)(5)] The operation of the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(a)(5)] The maintenance of the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(a) The training regarding the operation and use covered entity personnel using system. [BPC 4])] a)(5)] of the APDS for both the pharmacy and
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COM	PLETION DATE

C. PHARMACIST RESPONSIBILITIES

Yes No N/	A		
	behalf of the operating pharm	S is under the supervision of a lice acy. [BPC 4119.11(a)(7)]. Note: of the APDS and may supervise the supervise t	The pharmacist need not be
	pockets, cards, drawers, simila	the stocking of the APDS or if the rechnology, or unit of use or seed the facility if	
	the pharmacist may place dru	armacist or pharmacy technician gs into the removeable pockets, ingle dose containers. [BPC 4119	
	-	veable pockets, cards, drawers o een the pharmacy and the facilit	r similar technology or unit of use y are in a tamper-evident
	•	rocedures to ensure the remove use or single dose containers are	•
	the drugs contained within, o	a monthly review of the APDS in peration, maintenance, and cleated are to verify the security and ac	nliness of the APDS, and a review
	Date of Last Review:		
	[CCR 1715.65(h)] • All controlled substance	of the offsite ADDS/APDS has entered and to the ADDS/APDS are is limited to authorized facility p	accounted for;
	 An ongoing evaluation substance is performe 	of discrepancies or unusual accord; and	ess associated with controlled
		introlled substances are reported	
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTI	ON PLAN AND COMPLETION DAT	E
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 9 of 33	PIC Initials

D. DEVICE REQUIREMENTS
Yes No N/A 4.23 Access to the APDS is controlled and tracked using an identification or password system of biosensor. Systems tracked via password shall include a camera that records a picture of the individual accessing the APDS and the picture must be maintained for a minimum of 180 days [BPC 4119.11(e)]
4.24 The APDS makes complete and accurate records of all transactions including users accessing system and drugs added and removed from the APDS. [BPC 4119.11(f)]
4.25 The APDS will collect, control, and maintain all transaction information to accurately track the movement of drugs into and out of APDS. [BPC 4119.11(c)(1)]
4.26 The APDS will maintain transaction information in a readily available in downloadable format for review and inspection by authorized individuals for a minimum of 3 years. [BPC 4119.11(c)(2)]
4.27 The APDS may dispense medications DIRECTLY to the patient if all the following are met: [BPC 4119.11(d)]
 4.27.1 The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with respect to all the following and the policies are reviewed annually: [BPC 4119.11(d)(1) – (d)(1)(F)] Maintaining the security of the APDS and dangerous drug and devices within the APDS Determine and apply inclusion criteria regarding which drugs, devices are appropriate for placement in the APDS and for which patients. Ensuring patients are aware that consultation with a pharmacist is available for any prescription medication including those delivered via APDS Describing assignment of responsibilities and training of pharmacy personnel and other personnel using the APDS at that location regarding maintenance and filling procedures for the APDS. Orienting patients on use of APDS and notifying patients when expected medications are not available in the APDS. The pharmacy must ensure the use of the APDS does not interfere with the delivery of drugs and devices. Ensuring the delivery of drugs and devices to patients expecting medications from the API in the event the APDS is disabled or malfunctions.
Date of Last Policy Review:

	4.27.2 The APDS may only be used for pa demonstrating their informed consent t Attach a copy of the consent form to the	o receive prescribed drug and o	devices from the APDS.
Yes No N/	4.27.3 The device shall have a means to i patient's drugs and devices to the patien		
	4.27.4 The pharmacist has performed all including but not limited to drug utilizat	•	
	4.27.5 Drugs are dispensed from the APD the pharmacist has reviewed the prescricontraindication and adverse drug react	ption and the patient's profile	•
	4.27.6 The pharmacist shall consult patie dispensed from the APDS. The consultat telecommunication link that has two-wa	ion shall be provided by a Boar	rd licensed pharmacist vi
	4.27.7 The APDS shall prominently post a number of the pharmacy [BPC 4119.11(•	e, address and telephone
	4.27.8 The prescription labels on all drug CCR 1707.5. [BPC 4119.11(d)(8)]	s dispensed via APDS shall com	ply with BPC 4076 and
	4.27.9 Any complaint, error or omission i pharmacy's quality assurance program p	_	•
	4.28 The federal warning label prohibitin prescription container. [21 CFR 290.5]	g transfer of controlled substa	nces is on the
	4.29 Prescriptions are dispensed in a new opening tested container, or in a non-cowhen requested by the purchaser. [15 L	mplying package only pursuan	t to the prescriber or
	4.30 Patient package inserts are dispense	ed with all estrogen medication	ns. [21 CFR 310.515]
	4.31 The pharmacy provides patients wit 21 CFR 201.57(c).	h Black Box Warning Informati	on in conformance with
	4.32 Medication guides are provided on	required medications. (21 CFR	208.1)
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN	AND COMPLETION DATE	
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 11 of 33	PIC Initials

E.	RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS
requir	ne operating pharmacy has complied with all recordkeeping and quality assuran rements pursuant to BPC 4119.11 and those records shall be maintain within the nacy holding the APDS and separately from the other pharmacy records. [BPC 42
	ne operating pharmacy will maintain records of acquisition and disposition of dastored in the APDS separate from other pharmacy records. [BPC 4119.11(a)(4)]
charge during electr	ny records maintained electronically must be maintained so that the pharmacist e, or the pharmacist on duty if the pharmacist-in-charge is not on duty, must, at g which the licensed premises are open for business, be able to produce a hardconic copy of all records of acquisition and disposition or other drug or dispensin
ecord	ds maintained electronically. [BPC 4105(d)(1)]
	ds maintained electronically. [BPC 4105(d)(1)]
	ds maintained electronically. [BPC 4105(d)(1)]
CORR	ds maintained electronically. [BPC 4105(d)(1)] ECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
F.	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
F.	ective Action or Action Plan and Completion Date Policies and procedures The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with the policies and procedures of the policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures of the pharmacy has developed and the pharmacy has develop
F.	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with the following and the policies are reviewed annually:
F36 Thresper	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with to all the following and the policies are reviewed annually: aintaining the security of the APDS and dangerous drug and devices within the Aptermine and apply inclusion criteria regarding which drugs, devices are appropriated.
F. 1.36 TI respe	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ne pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with the policies and procedures
F36 TI respect Mo De pl: pr pr pr	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with the following and the policies are reviewed annually: aintaining the security of the APDS and dangerous drug and devices within the eletermine and apply inclusion criteria regarding which drugs, devices are appropriacement in the APDS and for which patients. Issuring patients are aware that consultation with a pharmacist is available for an appropriate account of the appropriacement in the APDS and for which patients.

Page 12 of 33

PIC Initials _____

17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)

•-	
	Date of Last Policy Review:
/A 7	
	.37 The pharmacy has policies and procedures for security measures and monitoring of the nventory to prevent theft and diversion. [BPC 4105.5(c)(2)]
	.38 The pharmacy reports drug losses as required by law. [BPC 4104, 4105.5(c), CCR 1715.6, 21 CFR 1301.76]
ı	ast Reported Drug Loss:
(CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
-	
-	
-	
-	
-	
-	
	ECTION 5: ADDS ADJACENT TO THE SECURED PHARMACY AREA AND OR LOCATED IN MEDICAD DEFICES. A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
] :	OFFICES.
י !	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5.1 The pharmacy maintains the APDS policies and procedures for 3 years after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4427.6(I)] 5.2 The pharmacy developed and implemented, and reviewed annually the APDS policy and
] ; ,	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5.1 The pharmacy maintains the APDS policies and procedures for 3 years after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4427.6(I)]
] ; ,	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5.1 The pharmacy maintains the APDS policies and procedures for 3 years after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4427.6(I)] 5.2 The pharmacy developed and implemented, and reviewed annually the APDS policy and procedures pertaining to the APDS, including: [BPC 4427.6(a)] • Maintaining the security of the APDS and the dangerous drugs and devices within the APDS. • Determining and applying inclusion criteria regarding which drugs and devices are
] ; ,	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5.1 The pharmacy maintains the APDS policies and procedures for 3 years after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4427.6(I)] 5.2 The pharmacy developed and implemented, and reviewed annually the APDS policy and procedures pertaining to the APDS, including: [BPC 4427.6(a)] • Maintaining the security of the APDS and the dangerous drugs and devices within the APDS. • Determining and applying inclusion criteria regarding which drugs and devices are appropriate for placement in the APDS and for which patients. • Ensuring patients are aware consultation with a pharmacist is available for any
] ; ,	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5.1 The pharmacy maintains the APDS policies and procedures for 3 years after the last date of use for that APDS. [BPC 4427.6(I)] 5.2 The pharmacy developed and implemented, and reviewed annually the APDS policy and procedures pertaining to the APDS, including: [BPC 4427.6(a)] • Maintaining the security of the APDS and the dangerous drugs and devices within the APDS. • Determining and applying inclusion criteria regarding which drugs and devices are appropriate for placement in the APDS and for which patients.

- Orienting participating patients on the use of the APDS, notifying patients when expected prescription medications are not available in the APDS, and ensuring patient use of the APDS does not interfere with delivery of drugs and devices.
- Ensuring delivery of drugs and devices to patients expecting to receive them from the APDS in the event the APDS is disabled or malfunctions.

Yes No N/A				
	5.3 The pharmacy does not have more than 15 APDS licenses for one underlying operating pharmacy under this section. [BPC 4427.6(k)] List of current APDS licenses:			
	1			
	3	4		
	5	6		
	7	8		
	9	10		
	11	12		
	13	14		
	15			
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE			
	B. PHARMACIST RESPONSIB	ILITIES:		
Yes No N/A				
	5.4 A pharmacist licensed by the boar dispensing process, including but not [BPC 4427.6(d)]			
	5.5 Drugs are dispensed from the APDS only upon authorization from the pharmacist after the pharmacist has reviewed the prescription and the patient's profile for potential contraindications and adverse drug reactions. [BPC 4427.6(e)]			
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 14 of 33	PIC Initials	

	5.6 The pharmacist shall consult patients for the first time on all prescribed drugs and devices dispensed from the APDS. The consultation shall be provided by a Board licensed pharmacist via telecommunication link that has two-way audio and video capabilities. [BPC 4427.6(f)]		
	 Access to ADDS/APDS is line An ongoing evaluation of a substance is performed; a 	added to the ADDS/APDS are mited to authorized facility pediscrepancies or unusual acce	accounted for; ersonnel; ss associated with controlled
Yes No N/A	5.8. The pharmacy operating the APDS has completed an <u>annual Self-Assessment</u> pursuant to CCR 1715 evaluating the pharmacy's compliance with pharmacy law relating to the use of the APDS. [BPC 4427.7(a)]		
	Date of Last Self-Assessment:		
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION	PLAN AND COMPLETION DAT	E
Voc No N //	C. DEVICE REQUIREMEN	TS:	
Yes No N/A	5.9 The stocking of the APDS is pe intern pharmacist under the supe facility pursuant to HSC 1250, who performed in compliance with HS	rvision of a pharmacist, excepere the stocking and restocking	ot for an APDS located in a health
	5.10 Access to the APDS is controlled and tracked using an identification or password system o biosensor. [BPC 4427.4(e)(2)]		
	5.11 The ADDS makes a complete and accurate record of all transactions including all users accessing the system and all drugs added to, or removed from, the system. [BPC 4427.4(e)(3)]		
	5.12 Drugs and devices not immediately transferred into an APDS upon arrival at the APDS location are stored for no longer than 48 hours in a secured room within the APDS location. Upon retrieval of these drugs and devices from secured storage, an inventory is taken to detect any losses or overages. [BPC 4427.4(f)]		
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 15 of 33	PIC Initials

	5.13 Drugs stored in the APDS are part of the inventory of the operating pharmacy and drugs dispensed by the APDS shall be considered to have been dispensed by the pharmacy. [BPC 4427.4(d)]
	5.14 The APDS may only be used for patients who have signed a written consent demonstrating their informed consent to receive prescribed drug and devices from the APDS. Attach a copy of the consent form to the back of the self-assessment. [BPC 4427.6(b)]
Yes No N/A	
	5.15 The APDS has a means to identify each patient and only release the identified patient's drugs and devices to the patient or the patient's agent. [BPC 4427.6(c)]
	5.16 The APDS has a notice, prominently posted on the APDS, which provides the name, address, and phone number of the pharmacy. [BPC 4427.6(g)]
	5.17 Any incident involving the APDS where a complaint, error, or omission occurred is reviewed as part of the pharmacy's quality assurance program pursuant to BPC 4125. [BPC 4427.6(i)]
	5.18 If the APDS is located and operated in a medical office or other location where patients are regularly seen for purposes of diagnosis and treatment, the APDS is only used to dispense dangerous drugs and dangerous devices to patients of the practice. [BPC 4427.6(j)]
	5.19 The labels on all drugs and devices dispensed by the APDS comply with section 4076 and with section 1707.5 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations. [BPC 4427.6(h)]
	5.20 The federal warning label prohibiting transfer of controlled substances is on the prescription container. [21 CFR 290.5]
	5.21 Prescriptions are dispensed in a new and child-resistant container, or senior-adult ease-of-opening tested container, or in a non-complying package only pursuant to the prescriber or when requested by the purchaser. [15 USC 1473[b], 16 CFR 1700.15, CCR 1717]
	5.22 Patient package inserts are dispensed with all estrogen medications. [21 CFR 310.515]
	5.23 The pharmacy provides patients with Black Box Warning Information in conformance with 21 CFR 201.57(c).
	5.24 Medication guides are provided on required medications. [21 CFR 208.1]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE

	D. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS
Yes No N/	·
	5.25 The operating pharmacy has complied with all recordkeeping and quality assurance requirements pursuant to BPC 4427.6 and those records shall be maintain within the pharmacy holding the APDS and separately from the other pharmacy records. [BPC 4427.7(b)]
Yes No N/	
	5.26 The operating pharmacy will maintain records of acquisition and disposition of dangerous drugs stored in the APDS separate from other pharmacy records. [BPC 4119.11(a)(4)]
	5.27 Any records maintained electronically must be maintained so that the pharmacist-in-charge, or the pharmacist on duty if the pharmacist-in-charge is not on duty, must, at all times during which the licensed premises are open for business, be able to produce a hardcopy and electronic copy of all records of acquisition and disposition or other drug or dispensing-related records maintained electronically. [BPC 4105(d)(1)]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
	E. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Yes No N/	A
	 5.28 The pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures with respect to all the following and the policies are reviewed annually: [4427.6(a) – 4427.6(a)(6)] Maintaining the security of the APDS and dangerous drug and devices within the APDS Determine and apply inclusion criteria regarding which drugs, devices are appropriate for placement in the APDS and for which patients.
	 Ensuring patients are aware that consultation with a pharmacist is available for any prescription medication including those delivered via APDS
	 Describing assignment of responsibilities and training of pharmacy personnel and other personnel using the APDS at that location regarding maintenance and filling procedures for the APDS.
	 Orienting patients on use of APDS and notifying patients when expected medications are not available in the APDS. The pharmacy must ensure the use of the APDS does not interfere with the delivery of drugs and devices.
	 Ensuring the delivery of drugs and devices to patients expecting medications from the APDS in the event the APDS is disabled or malfunctions.

Page 17 of 33

PIC Initials _____

	Date of Last Policy Review:
	5.29 The pharmacy reports drug losses as required by law. [BPC 4104, 4105.5(c), CCR 1715.6, 21 CFR 1301.76]
	Last Reported Drug Loss:
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
	SECTION 6: ADDS IN A HEALTH FACILITY PURSUANT TO HSC 1250 – LONG TERM CARE FACILITIES
	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
	For purposes of this section, "FACILITY" means a health facility licensed pursuant to subdivision (c), (d), or (k) of section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code that has an ADDS provided by a pharmacy. [HSC 1261.6(a)(2)]
	For purposes of this section, "PHARMACY SERVICES" means the provision of both routine and emergency drugs and biologicals to meet the needs of the patient, as prescribed by a physician. [HSC 1261.6 (a)(3)]
Yes No N/A	6.1 The facility and the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures to ensure safety, accuracy, accountability, security, patient confidentiality, and maintenance of the ADDS as well as quality, potency, and purity of the stored drugs and devices. [BPC 4427.3(c), HSC 1261.6 (d)(1)]
	6.2 The ADDS policies and procedures define access to the ADDS and limits to access to equipment and drugs. [HSC 1261.6 (d)(1)]
	6.3 All ADDS policies and procedures are maintained at the pharmacy and the location where the ADDS is being used. [HSC 1261.6(d)(2), BPC 4427.3(c)]
	6.4 The pharmacy is responsible for review of drugs contained within the ADDS and the operation and maintenance of the ADDS. [HSC 1261.6(h)]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE

B. PHARMACIST RESPONSIBILITIES: Yes No N/A $\Box\Box\Box$ 6.5 The stocking of the ADDS is performed by a pharmacist or if the ADDS utilizes removable pockets, cards, drawers, similar technology, or unit of use or single dose containers are used, the stocking system may be done outside the facility and be delivered to the facility if the following conditions are met: [HSC 1261.6 (g)] Yes No N/A $\Box\Box\Box$ 6.5.1 The task of placing drugs into the removeable pockets, cards, drawers, or unit or use or single dose containers is performed by a pharmacist, or by an intern pharmacist or a pharmacy technician under the direct supervision of a pharmacist. [HSC 1261.6 (g)(1)] $\Box\Box\Box$ 6.5.2 The removable pockets, cards, drawers, or unit of use or single dose containers are transported between the pharmacy and the facility in a secure tamper-evident container. [HSC 1261.6 (g)(2)] $\Box\Box\Box$ 6.5.3 The facility, in conjunction with the pharmacy, has developed policies and procedures to ensure that the removable pockets, cards, drawers, or unit of use or single dose containers are properly placed into the ADDS. [HSC 1261.6(g)(3)] □□□ 6.6 Individualized and specific access to the ADDS is limited to facility and contract personnel authorized by law to administer drugs. [HSC 1261.6 (c)] 6.7 A pharmacist reviews and approves all orders prior to a drug being removed from the ADDS for administration to a patient. The pharmacist reviews the prescriber's orders and the patient's profile for potential contraindications and adverse drug reactions. [HSC 1261.6 (f)(2)] $\Box\Box\Box$ 6.8 The review of the drugs contained within the ADDS and the operation and maintenance of the ADDS is conducted, on a monthly basis, by a pharmacist. The review includes a physical inspection of the ADDS for cleanliness, and a review of all transaction records in order to verify the security and accountability of the system. [HSC 1261.6 (h)] Date of Last Review: □□□ 6.9 The Pharmacist-in-charge of the offsite ADDS has ensured the following: [CCR 1715.65(h)] All controlled substances added to the ADDS are accounted for; Access to ADDS is limited to authorized facility personnel; An ongoing evaluation of discrepancies or unusual access associated with controlled substance is performed; and Confirmed losses of controlled substances are reported to the Board.

	6.10 The pharmacy operating the ADDS has completed an <u>annual Self-Assessment</u> pursuant to BPC4427.7(a) evaluating the pharmacy's compliance with pharmacy law relating to the use of the APDS (BPC 4427.7(a)).		
	Date of Last Self-Assessment:		
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE		
	C. DEVICE REQUIREMENTS:		
Yes No N/A	•		
	6.11 The stocking and restocking of the ADDS is performed in compliance with section 1261.6 of the Health and Safety Code. [BPC 4427.4(e)(1)]		
	6.12 Drugs and devices not immediately transferred into an ADDS upon arrival at the ADDS location are stored for no longer than 48 hours in a secured room within the ADDS location. Upon retrieval of these drugs and devices from secured storage, an inventory is taken to detect any losses or overages. [BPC 4427.4(f)]		
	6.13 Transaction information from the ADDS will be made readily available in a written format for review and inspection by individuals authorized by law and maintained in the facility for a minimum of three years. [HSC 1261.6(b)]		
	6.14 The information required by BPC section 4076 and HSC 111480 is readily available at the time of drug administration if unit dose packaging or unit of use packaging is used. Unit dose packaging, for purposes of this section, includes blister pack cards. [HSC 1261.6(i)]		
Vac Na Ni / N	When the ADDS is used as an emergency pharmaceutical supplies container, drugs removed from the ADDS are limited to the following [HSC 1261.6(e)]:		
Yes No N/A	6.15 A new drug order given by a prescriber for a patient of the facility for administration prior to the next scheduled delivery from the pharmacy, or 72 hours, whichever is less. The drug is retrieved only upon the authorization of a pharmacist and after the pharmacist has reviewed the prescriber's order and the patient's profile for potential contraindications and adverse drug reactions. [HSC 1261.6(e)(1)]		
	6.16 Drugs that a prescriber has ordered for a patient on an as-needed basis, if the utilization and retrieval of those drugs are subject to ongoing review by a pharmacist. [HSC 1261.6(e)(2)]		
	6.17 Drugs designed by the patient care policy committee or pharmaceutical service committee of the facility as emergency drugs or acute onset drugs. These drugs are retrieved from the		

Page 20 of 33

PIC Initials _____

ADDS pursuant to the order of a prescriber for emergency or immediate administration to a patient of the facility and reviewed by a pharmacist within 48 hours. [HSC 1261.6(e)(3)]

When the ADDS is used to provide pharmacy services pursuant to BPC 4017.3, the ADDS is subject to the following requirements [HSC 1261.6 (f)]:

Yes No N/A	6.18 Drugs removed from the ADI of administration containers or pa		ent are in properly labeled units
	6.19 A pharmacist reviews and ap ADDS for administration to a patie patient's profile for potential con-	ent. The pharmacist reviews th	e prescriber's orders and the
	6.20 The pharmacy controls acces	ss to the drugs stored in the AD	DDS. [HSC 1261.6 (f)(3)]
	6.21 Access to the ADDS is contro biosensor. [BPC 4427.4(e)(2), HSC		tification or password system or
	6.22 The ADDS makes a complete accessing the system and all drug HSC 1261.6(f)(5)]		
	6.23 After the pharmacist reviews ADDS is limited only to drugs ord that are specific to the patient. [H	ered by the prescriber and rev	•
	6.24 When the prescriber's order personnel only have access to the [HSC 1261.6 (f)(6)]	=	-
	6.25 If the ADDS allow licensed per patient specific in their design, the place to ensure that the drugs de (HSC 1261.6 (f)(7)).	ne ADDS has electronic and me	chanical safeguards in
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION	PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE	
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 21 of 33	PIC Initials

	D. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS
Yes No N/A	6.26 The pharmacy complies with all recordkeeping and quality assurance requirements, established in pharmacy law and regulation, and maintains those records within the licensed pharmacy holding the ADDS license and separate from the other pharmacy records. [BPC 4427.7 (b)]
Yes No N/A	6.27 Transaction information from the ADDS will be made readily available in a written format for review and inspection by individuals authorized by law and maintained in the facility for a minimum of three years. [HSC 1261.6(b)] CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
	CONNECTIVE METION ON METION TEMPORAL ELITON BATE
Yes No N/A	E. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	6.28 The facility and the pharmacy has developed and implemented written policies and procedures to ensure safety, accuracy, accountability, security, patient confidentiality, and maintenance of the ADDS as well as quality, potency, and purity of the stored drugs and devices. [BPC 4427.3(c), HSC 1261.6(d)(1)]
	6.29 The ADDS policies and procedures define access to the ADDS and limits to access to equipment and drugs. [HSC 1261.6(d)(1)]
	6.30 All ADDS policies and procedures are maintained at the pharmacy and the location where the ADDS is being used. [HSC 1261.6(d)(2), BPC 4427.3(c)]
	6.31 The facility, in conjunction with the pharmacy, has developed policies and procedures to ensure that the removable pockets, cards, drawers, or unit of use or single dose containers are properly placed into the ADDS. [HSC 1261.6(g)(3)]
	6.32 The pharmacy has policies and procedures that include appropriate security measures and monitoring of the inventory to prevent theft and diversion. [BPC 4427.2(d)(3)]
	6.33 The pharmacy's policies and procedures include provisions for reporting to the board drug losses from the ADDS inventory, as required by law. [BPC 4104, 4427.2(d)(4), CCR 1715.6, 21 CFR 1301.76]
	Last Reported Drug Loss:

17M-112 (Rev. 12/18) Page 22 of 33 PIC Initials _____

	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE		
	SECTION 7: APDS THROUGH A 4190	CLINIC PURSUANT TO HSC 1204	OR 1204.1 OR BPC 4180 OR
	A. GENERAL REQUIREMEN	TS	
Yes No N/	7.1 The ADDS is located inside a approved by the Board [BPC 44	n enclosed building with a premi 27.3 (a)]. The clinic has a current r BPC 4190? or the clinic is licens	Board of Pharmacy Clinic
	License number:	Expiration Date	;
	and procedures shall ensure the	l implemented written policies a , security and patient confidenti e maintenance of the quality, po all be maintained at the locatio	ality. Additionally, the policies tency and purity of the drugs.
	7.3 Drugs removed from the AD licensed pursuant to BPC 4186(ent by a health professional
	7.4 The clinic is responsible for t maintenance of, the ADDS. [BP6]	_	d within, and the operation and
	7.5 Drugs dispensed from the cli with CCR 1707.5. [BPC 4186(g),		ling requirements in BPC 4076
	7.6 The clinic shall keep records dispensed and the records shall inspection by all authorized per	be available and maintained for	•
	7.7 The proposed ADDS installation location meets the requirement of BPC 4427.3 and the ADDS is secure from access and removal by unauthorized individuals. [BPC 4427.2(d)(2)]		
	7.8 The clinics licensed under BF reconciliation functions to dete	C 4180 or BPC 4190 perform pe ct and prevent the loss of contro	•
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 23 of 33	PIC Initials

	[CCR 1715.65(a)]
	 7.9 The clinic shall compile an inventory reconciliation report of all federal Schedule II controlled substance at least every three months. [CCR 1715.65(c)] The compilation requires: A physical count (not estimate) of all quantities of all federal Schedule II controlled substances. A review of all acquisition and disposition records of federal Schedule II controlled substances since that last inventory reconciliation report: Date of last inventory A comparison of (1) and (2) to determine if there are any variances. All records used to compile each inventory reconciliation report shall be maintained at clinic for 3 years in a readily retrievable form. Possible causes of overages shall be identified in writing and incorporated into the inventory reconciliation report.
Yes No N/A	7.10 The clinic shall report in writing identified drug losses and known cause to the Board within 30 days of discovery. Cases of the loss is due to theft, diversion or self-use shall be reported to the Board within 14 days of discovery. If the clinic is unable to identify the cause of loss, further investigation shall be undertaken to identify the cause and actions necessary to prevent additional losses of controlled substances. [CCR 1715.65(d)]
	7.11 The individuals performing the inventory AND the clinic professional director shall date and sign the inventory reconciliation reports. The reports shall be readily retrievable at the clinic for 3 years. [CCR 1715.65(e)]
	7.12 Any incident involving the APDS where a complaint, error, or omission has occurred is reviewed as part of the pharmacy's quality assurance program pursuant to BPC 4125. [BPC 4427.6(i)]
	7.13 The federal warning label prohibiting transfer of controlled substances is on the prescription container. [21 CFR 290.5]
	7.14 Prescriptions are dispensed in a new and child-resistant container, or senior-adult ease-of-opening tested container, or in a non-complying package only pursuant to the prescriber or when requested by the purchaser. [15 USC 1473(b), 16 CFR 1700.15, CCR 1717]
	7.15 Patient package inserts are dispensed with all estrogen medications. [21 CFR 310.515]
	7.16 The pharmacy provides patients with Black Box Warning Information in conformance with 21 CFR 201.57(c).
	7.17 Medication guides are provided on required medications. [21 CFR 208.1]

Page 24 of 33

PIC Initials _____

	7.18 Is the APDS located and operated or devices to patients of the clinic? [BPC 44]		us drugs and dangerous
	7.19 Does the pharmacy have no more than 15 ADDS licensed as APDS units? [BPC 4427.6(k)] List of current APDS licenses:		
	1	2	
	3	4	
	5	6	
	7	8	
	9	10	
	11	12	
	13	14	
	15		
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN	AND COMPLETION DATE	
Yes No N/A	B. PHARMACIST RESPONSIBILITY 7.20 The pharmacist performs the stocking	ng of the ADDS. [BPC 4186(c)]
	7.21 Drugs are removed from the ADDS s after the pharmacist has reviewed the p contraindications and adverse drug reac	rescription and patient profil	·
	7.22 The pharmacist shall conduct a review on a monthly basis including a physical inspection of the drugs in the ADDS for cleanliness and a review of all transaction records in order to verify the security and accountability of the ADDS. [BPC 4186(d)]		
	Date of Last Review:		
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 25 of 33	PIC Initials

	7.23 The pharmacist licensed by the board performs all clinical services conducted as part of the dispensing process, including, but not limited to, drug utilization review and consultation. [BPC 4427.6(d)]
	7.24 Drugs are dispensed from the APDS after the pharmacist has reviewed the prescription and the patient's profile for potential contraindications and adverse drug reactions. [BPC 4427.6(e)]
Yes No N/A	A
	7.25 All prescribed drugs and devices dispensed to the patient from an APDS for the first time shall be accompanied by a consultation conducted by a pharmacist licensed by the board via telecommunication link with a two-way audio and video. [BPC 4427.6(f)]
	7.26 The APDS has a notice, prominently posted on the APDS, with the name, address, and phone number of the pharmacy holding the ADDS license for the APDS. [BPC 4427.6(g)]
	7.27 The pharmacist shall provide patient consultation pursuant to CCR 1707.2 via a two-way audio and video telecommunication link for drugs dispensed by the clinic ADDS. [BPC 4186(e)]
	7.28 The pharmacist operating the ADDS shall be located in California. [BPC 4186(f)]
	7.29 The clinic consultant pharmacist shall review all inventory and inventory reconciliation reports taken and establish and maintain secure methods to prevent losses of controlled substances. The clinic shall develop written policies and procedures for performing the inventory reconciliation reports. (CCR 1715.65(b))
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
Yes No N/	 C. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 7.32 The pharmacy has developed and implemented, and reviewed annually, written policies and procedures pertaining to the APDS, including all the following: [BPC 4427.6(a)] Maintaining the security of the APDS and dangerous drugs and dangerous devices within the APDS. Determining and applying inclusion criteria regarding which drugs and devices are appropriate for placement in the APDS and for which patients. Ensuring patients are aware consultation with a pharmacist is available for any prescription medication, including those delivered via the APDS.

- Describing assignments of responsibilities to, and training of, pharmacy personnel, and other personnel using the APDS at the location where the APDS is placed pursuant to subdivision (b) of section 4427.3, regarding maintenance and filing procedures for the APDS.
- Orienting participating patients on the use of the APDS, notifying patient when expected
 prescription medications are not available in the APDS, and ensuring the patient use of the
 APDS does not interfere with delivery of drugs and devices.
- Ensuring delivery of drugs and devices to patients expecting to receive them from the APDS in the event the APDS is disabled or malfunctions.

Date of Last Policy Review:

	Date of East Folicy Neview.		
Yes No N/	7.33 Is the APDS only used for patients of their informed consent to receive preso of the APDS meets inclusion criteria est	cribed drugs and devices from a	an APDS, and whose use
	7.34 The APDS shall have a means of ide patient's drugs and devices to the patie		
	7.35 The pharmacy holding the ADDS lic for three (3) years after the last date of		•
	7.36 Does the pharmacy maintain all red established in pharmacy law and regula pharmacy holding the ADDS license and [BPC 4427.7(b)]	tions, and maintain these reco	rds within the licensed
	SECTION 8: ADDS OPERATED BY A COL	RRECTIONAL CLINIC	
Yes No N/	8.1 The pharmacy uses an "automated of meaning a mechanical system controlled activities, other than compounding or a distribution of prepackaged dangerous delivery system shall collect, control, are track the movement of drugs into and of	ed remotely by a pharmacist that administration, relative to the solution of dangerous devices. And maintain all transaction info	at performs operations or torage, dispensing, or n automated drug rmation to accurately
	accountability. [BPC 4187.5(h)] 8.2 The ADDS is located in a "correction subdivision (b) of section 1206 of the H operated by the state to provide health and Rehabilitation (BPC 4187).	ealth and Safety Conde, condu	cted, maintained, or
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 27 of 33	PIC Initials

	8.3 The correctional clinic licensed pharmacy, the Department of Coanother correctional clinic license administration or dispensing of cacility if under either: [BPC 4187]	orrection and Rehabilitation's ed by the board within the sa Irugs or devices to patients el	Central Fill Pharmacy, or from
	 The directions of a ph authorized to prescrib 	ysician and surgeon, dentist,	or other person lawfully
	•	l as identified within the state	ewide Inmate Medical Services
Yes No N/			
		1 4019, a valid prescription co Code, or pursuant to an appro	nsistent with chapter 9 division 2 oved protocol as identified within
	8.5 Medications dispensed to pat the labeling requirements of sect division 2 of the Business and Pro	tion 4076 and all record keep	ing requirements of chapter 9
	8.6 The correctional clinic keeps r administered, transferred, and d maintained for a minimum of thr [BPC 4187.1(c)]	ispensed. The records must b	e readily available and
	8.7 The correctional clinic has obt	ained a license from the boa	rd. [BPC 4187.1(d)(1)]
	8.8 A separate license was obtain located and is not to be transferr		c location where an APDS is
	8.9 The correctional clinic's locati building within the correctional i		
	8.10 The correctional clinic will no on a form furnished by the board	•	any change in the clinic's address
	8.11 The ADDS is secured from ac [BPC 4427.2(d)(2)]	cess and removal by unautho	orized individuals.
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION	PLAN AND COMPLETION DA	TE
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 28 of 33	PIC Initials

B. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Yes No N/	4		
	correctional clinic was develop	res to implement the laws and reg ped and approved by the statewic renced in section 5024.2 of the Pe	de Correctional Pharmacy and
	the policies and procedures w servicing the institution, the p and Rehabilitation's Central Fi	te correctional clinic license by the ras signed by the correctional facil harmacist-in-charge for the Califo ill Pharmacy, and the correctional re executive, and chief executive o	ity pharmacist-in-charge ornia Department of Correction clinic's chief medical executive,
	8.14 The chief executive office pharmacy services. [BPC 4187	r is responsible for the safe, order .2(b)(1)]	ly and lawful provision of
	procedures developed and ap Committee referenced in sect Services Policies and Procedure	of the correctional facility shall in proved by the statewide Correction ion 5042.2 of the Penal Code and res in conjunction with the chief e ising dentist, and the chief nurse of	onal Pharmacy and Therapeutics the statewide Inmate Medical xecutive officer, the chief
		clinic will notify the board within a rm furnished by the board. [BPC 4	
	the licensed correctional clinic defined in section 4019, a vali and Professions Code, or purs	strolled substances may be adminically authorized to administed prescription consistent with chauant to an approved protocol as ideas and Procedures. [BPC 4187.3]	r pursuant to a chart order, as opter 9 division 2 of the Business
	Correctional Pharmacy and Th statewide Inmate Medical Ser	ensed correctional clinic has imple nerapeutics Committee's policies a vices Policies and Procedures to e nt confidentiality, and maintenand)]	and procedures and the ensure safety, accuracy,
	-	es are maintained either in an elect d drug system is being used. [BPC	• •
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION	ON PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE	<u> </u>
	17M-112 (Rev. 12/18)	Page 29 of 33	PIC Initials

Yes No N/	C. PHARMACIST RESPONSIBILITIES
	8.20 A correctional facility pharmacist inspects the clinic at least quarterly. [BPC 4187.2(c)]
	8.21 Drugs removed from the automated drug delivery system is removed upon authorization by a pharmacist after the pharmacist has reviewed the prescription and the patient profile for potential contraindications and adverse drug reactions. If the correctional pharmacy is closed, and if, the prescriber's professional judgment, a delay in therapy may cause patient harm, the medication may be removed from the automated drug delivery system and administered or furnished to the patient under the direction of the prescriber. Where the drug is otherwise unavailable, a medication may be removed and administered or furnished to the patient pursuant to an approved protocol as identified within the statewide Inmate Medical Services Policies and Procedures. Any removal of the medication from an automated drug delivery system is documented and provided to the correctional pharmacy when it reopens. [BPC 4187.5(b)]
Yes No N/	8.22 The review is conducted on a monthly basis by a pharmacist and shall include a physical inspection of the drugs in the automated drug delivery system, an inspection of the automated drug delivery system machine for cleanliness, and a review of all transaction records in order to verify the security and accountability of the system. [BPC 4187.5(e)]
	Date of Last Review:
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
Yes No N/	D. DEVICE REQUIREMENT
	8.23 Drugs removed from the ADDS is provided to the patient by a health professional licensed pursuant to division 2 of the Business and Professions Code who is lawfully authorized to perform the task. [BPC 4187.5(c)]
	8.24 The review of the drugs contained within, and the operation and maintenance of, the ADDS shall be the responsibility of the correctional clinic. [BPC 4187.5(e)]

Page 30 of 33

PIC Initials _____

	8.25 The ADDS is operated by a licensed correctional pharmacy. Any drugs within the ADDS are considered owned by the licensed correctional pharmacy until they are dispensed from the ADDS. [BPC 4187.5(f)]
	8.26 Drugs from the ADDS in the correctional clinic are removed by a person lawfully authorized to administer or dispense the drugs. [BPC 4187.5(g)]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
Yes No N/	E. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS
	8.27 All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, receipt, shipment, or disposition of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices, at all times during business hours, are open for inspection by authorized officer of the law and is preserved for at least three years from the date of making. A current inventory is kept by the licensed correctional clinic. [BPC 4081(a)]
	CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE
	SECTION 9: AUDS used for dispensing pursuant to BPC 4056 (Drug Room) or BPC 4068 (Hospital Pharmacy is closed and no pharmacist is available)
Yes No N/A	A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 9.1 The licensed drug room does not employ a full-time pharmacist and the AUDS is used for administration and dispensation by a physician to persons registered as inpatients of the hospital, to emergency cases under treatment in the hospital, or to outpatients if the physician determines that it is in the best interest of the patient that a particular drug regimen be immediately commenced or continued, and the physician reasonably believes that a pharmacy located outside the hospital is not available and accessible at the time of dispensation to the
	patient within 30 minutes of the hospital pharmaceutical services or within a 30-mile radius by means of the method of transportation the patient states he/she intend to use. The quantity dispensed is limited to the amount necessary to maintain uninterrupted therapy, but shall not exceed a 72-hour supply. [BPC 4056(a),(f)]

Page 31 of 33

PIC Initials _____

9.2 The prescriber in a hospital emergency room dispenses drug from the AUDS when the
hospital pharmacy is closed and there is no pharmacist available in the hospital. The drugs is
acquired by the hospital pharmacy. The dispensing information is recorded and provided to the
pharmacy when the pharmacy reopens. The hospital pharmacy retains the dispensing
information. The prescriber determines it is in the best interest of the patient that a particular
drug regimen be immediately commenced or continued, and the prescriber reasonable believe that a pharmacy located outside the hospital is not available at the time of dispensing to the
patients. The quantity dispensed is limited to the amount necessary to maintain uninterrupted
therapy when pharmacy services outside the hospital are not readily available or accessible,
and shall not exceed a 72-hour supply. [BPC 4068(a)(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)(6)]
Yes No N/A
9.3 The prescriber ensures the label on the drug contains all the information required by BPC
<u>4076, CCR 1707.5</u>
9.4 The federal warning labels prohibiting transfer of controlled substances is on the
prescription container. [21 CFR 290.5]
9.5 The prescription drug is dispensed in a new and child-resistant container, or senior-adult
ease-of-opening tested container, or in a non-complying package only pursuant to the request
of the prescriber or patient. [15 USC 1473(b), 16 CFR 1700.15, CCR 1717]
9.6 The hospital pharmacy or drug room reports the dispensing information of a Schedule II, III
or IV controlled substance to the Dept of Justice pursuant to HSC 11165 as soon as reasonably
possible, but not more than seven days after the date a controlled substance is dispensed. [BP 4069(a)(4), HSC 11165(d)]
$\frac{4003(a)(4), 1130 11103(a))}{a}$
9.7 Patient package inserts are dispensed with all estrogen medications. [21 CFR 310.515]
9.8 The hospital has written policies and procedures to ensure each patient receive information
regarding each drug given at the time of discharge or dispensed from a prescriber from a drug
room, including the use and storage of each drug, the precautions and relevant warnings, and
the importance of compliance with directions. [BPC 4074(e)]
CORRECTIVE ACTION OR ACTION PLAN AND COMPLETION DATE

CERTIFICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT

PHARMACIST-IN-CHARGE CE	RTIFICATION:
completed the self-assessment of in-charge. Any deficiency identifit to verification by the Board of Ph	hereby certify that I have fithis automated drug delivery system of which I am the pharmacisted herein will be corrected. I understand that all responses are subject armacy. I further state under penalty of perjury of the laws of the Stat that I have provided in this self- assessment form is true and correct.
Signature (Pharmacist-in-Charge)	Date
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OV	NER OF ADDS:
failure to correct any deficiency i	, hereby certify under penalty of perjury of the laws of the d and reviewed this completed self-assessment. I understand that dentified in this self-assessment could result in the revocation of the California State Board of Pharmacy.
Signature	Date
completed deficiencies identified which I am the pharmacist-in-character of Pharmacy. I further sta	RTIFICATION: , RPH # hereby certify that I have in the self-assessment of this automated drug delivery system of arge. I understand that all responses are subject to verification by the e under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California that ed in this self- assessment form is true and correct.
Signature(Pharmacist-in-Charge)	Date
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY OW	
failure to correct any deficiency i	, hereby certify under penalty of perjury of the laws of the d and reviewed this completed self-assessment. I understand that dentified in this self-assessment could result in the revocation of the California State Board of Pharmacy.
Signature	Date